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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Environmental Resources Group Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the Annual Report 2016 and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2016.

The Group was listed in 1997 with business focuses on garment
and property businesses in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
Due to keen competition and rising cost of the garment and
property businesses, the Group diversified into green business in
late 2008. Due to the unstable natural factors, the Group diversified
into money lending business, car parking spaces rental, motor
trading and trading and investment business in 2015 and 2016.

The Group is currently engaged in motor trading, car parking
spaces rental, money lending business and trading and investment
business. The Group also maintains the green businesses of
research, development and application of technologies solutions,
manufacture, sale and trading of products, systems and services
for green market segments including the environmental markets,
agricultural markets, organic markets and green technology markets
in the PRC market and overseas. The Group has been continuing
to explore new business opportunities for corporate development
and dedicates to develop sustainable current business.

The Group operates approximately 30,000 mu (Chinese Mu) of
the plantation in Shihezi City, Xinjiang. The underground water
level of the region dropped drastically in recent years due to
over-exploitation of farmland, resulting in a shortage of water
resources. The irrigation in Xinjiang relies heavily on underground
water, because the supply of surface water is far below the demand
for plantation irrigation, thus creating difficulties for hydraulic
engineering projects for plantation areas and driving up the
operating costs.

As the construction industry in China is shrinking, the demand
for housing construction materials decreases and the prices of
timber are going downward in short-term. Therefore, the Group
adopted a conservative investment approach towards its plantation
management, under which the Group reduced its investment in
reforestation and only conducted basic maintenance measures.

The Group acquired a subsidiary which directly holds, inter alia, 95
car parking spaces located in Kennedy Town, Hong Kong during
the financial year ended 30 June 2016. In view of recent surge in
market price of car parking spaces in Hong Kong, the prospect of
car parking spaces in Hong Kong to be positive. The car parking
spaces rental can be broaden the Group’s source of income.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
TEERS

The Group has launched its motor trading business during the
financial year ended 30 June 2016 by introducing the world’s first
road legal, within a captivating package of formula car-inspired
technology remarkable performance, breath-taking design and
ultra light-weight single seat supercar “BAC Mono”. The Group
also launched its trading in a United Kingdom motorcycle marque
“Norton” which is highly regarded road motorcycle.

Although global economy will still be uncertain and volatile in
coming years, the luxury goods market, especially the supercar
segment is stable and rising. The Group is of the view that the
motor trading business will bring positive contribution to the Group
and will allocate appropriate resource to further develop this
business segment.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2016, turnover of the Group
increased by 390% to approximately HK$13.37 million with
gross profit of approximately HK$5.15 million (2015: turnover of
approximately HK$2.73 million with gross profit of approximately
HK$0.93 million). Loss for the year amounted to HK$106.89 million
(2015: Loss of approximately HK$68.9 million), including mainly
the increase of approximately HK$33.16 million in the net loss on
fair value changes on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

In the process of valuing the Biological Asset, Roma adopted the
Market-Based Approach to estimate the fair value of the Biological
Asset. The fair value of the Biological Asset was computed using
the formula:

The fair value of Biological Asset = (Total volume of standing
timbers x Recovery rate) x Market price of timber — Cutting cost +
Scrap sale income

According to EE£EEL{EIRE prepared by Forestry Manager,
random sampling has been performed on 31 July 2016, in order
to estimate the total volume of standing timbers on the Plantation
Land based on “FEARLMBEIBEIRELEFRAMIER GB/T 4814-
2013”. During the sampling process, there were 20 sampling areas
with an area of about 0.5 Mu. The following inputs have been
adopted in this valuation based on the opinions as stated in Z¥%&
E{G{E#R % prepared by Forestry Manager:

*  Total volume of standing timbers = 818,455 m3

* Recovery rate = 80%
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
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«  Cutting cost = 5% of revenue
»  Scrap sale income = 5% of revenue

With reference to observable market price of timber of similar
species in China, the adopted market price was RMB716 per cubic
meter.

To determine how the different values of an independent variable
would impact a particular dependent variable under a given set
of assumptions, Roma carried out sensitivity analyses on the fair
value of the Biological Asset in respect of the recovery rate and
adopted market price. The results of the sensitivity analyses were as
follows:

Absolute Change in Recovery Rate

R =SB EHE Fr AR
+10% 90%
+5% 85%
0% 80%
-5% 75%
-10% 70%
% Change in Adopted Market Price Adopted Market Price
PR ESE FRER TR
(RMB/m?3)
[E)5 4 (BYIFRKARETT)
+10% 787
+5% 752
0% 716
-5% 680
-10% 644

The directors are of the view that the fair value of the biological
assets are under a significant impact from changes in market
price per m? of logs. If the market price per m? of logs increases/
decreases, the fair value of the biological assets would be higher/
lower proportionately, holding other inputs and assumptions used in
the valuation techniques remained unchanged.

During the financial year 30 June 2016, the Group recognised
aggregate losses arising from the major non-current assets of
approximately HK$51 million. This represents the combined effect
of the amortisation of intangible asset and the loss arising from
changes in fair value less costs to sell of biological assets.
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Applied Recovery Rate
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EMEEAARE
(RMB)
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527,290,000
497,996,000
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439,408,000
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Fair Value of the Biological Asset

EMEEDNRE

(RMB)
(AR%TT)

515,572,000
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
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MOTOR TRADING

In view of an increasing demand of supercars in Hong Kong, on 10
August 2015, the Group firstly commenced its distribution business
of specialist sport cars of United Kingdom brand and extended the
scope with motorcycles and accessories. At the second quarter of
2016, the Group further commenced to distribute United Kingdom
and ltalian Brands motorcycles and related accessories. For the
financial year ended 30 June 2016, the sales of trading of motor
vehicles and motorcycles recorded HK$9.68 million (2015: Nil).

CAR PARKING SPACES RENTAL

On 3 July 2015, the Group completed a major and connected
transaction, namely, the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital and shareholder’s loan of the newly acquired subsidiary
which directly holds, inter alia, 95 car parking spaces located in
Kennedy Town, Hong Kong. For the financial year ended 30 June
2016, rental income recorded was approximately HK$3.36 million
(2015: Nil).

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

On 18 December 2014, the Group obtained the money lenders
license. The directors of the Company consider it will be beneficial
to the Group to explore new opportunities in the money lending
business to broaden its source of income and expand the business
operations in order to generate profits and return for the Company
and the Shareholders. For the financial year ended 30 June 2016,
loan interest income recorded approximately HK$0.33 million (2015:
HK$0.01 million).

TRADING AND INVESTMENT BUSINESS

In view of the launch of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and to
have a better utilization of the Group’s funding resources, the Group
started trading in securities in Year 2014. The Group’s trading
securities are measured at fair value, which are based on their
quoted prices in the securities market and the securities market was
very volatile in July and August 2015. The volatility of the securities
market may have adverse effect to the performance of the Group
after the year ended 30 June 2016. For the financial year ended 30
June 2016, the net loss on fair value changes on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss recorded HK$33.16 million (2015:
net gain HK$30.85 million).
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
TEERS

PLANTATION PRODUCT

There was no revenue on the sale of plantation products for the
year (2015: Nil).

For the financial year ended 30 June 2016, the growth and the
volume of the biological assets was affected by the shortage
of underground water in the region. The Group recorded the
decrease by 13.70% to approximately HK$547.22 million (2015:
approximately HK$634.12 million) in the fair value of the poplar
trees of biological assets. The Group considers that the decreases
are non-cash in nature and will not have material adverse effect on
the financial position of the Group.

GREEN TECHNOLOGY

The green technology segment comprises the research and
development, project establishment, application and sale of
green and environmental product, technology, service and related
products for sustainable development. There was no revenue
on the green technology segment for the year (2015: sales
approximately HK$2.7 million, accounting for about 98.79% of the
Group’s total revenue).

PROSPECTS

In view of the challenging economic and business environment,
the management of the Group continued to review its existing
businesses from time to time and strived to improve the business
operation and financial position of the Group.

In this regards, on 3 July 2015, the Group completed a major
and connected transaction, namely, the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital and shareholder’s loan of the newly acquired
subsidiary which directly holds, inter alia, 95 car parking spaces
located in Kennedy Town, Hong Kong. The acquisition generated
stable and continuous income and cash flow to the Group. The
Group is considering to enhance the value of the car parking
spaces and maximize the return of the Group.

In addition, at August 2015, the Group commenced its motor
trading business including distribution of United Kingdom brand
of supercar; and United Kingdom and Italian Brands motorcycles
and related accessories. This business segment became major
revenue generator for the financial year ended 2016 and the Group
will continue to allocate more resource and effort to develop this
segment.

It has been the business strategy of the Group to proactively seek
potential investment opportunities in order to enhance value of
the shareholders of the Company. The directors of the Company
consider that it is beneficial for the Group to seek suitable
investment opportunities from time to time to diversify its existing
business portfolio into new line of business with growth potential
and to broaden its source of income.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue at approximately HK$13.37 million (2015:
approximately HK$2.73 million), representing an increase of 390%
as compared with the year ended 30 June 2015 (the “Previous
Year”). The Group’s gross profit increase by 454% to approximately
HK$5.15 million (2015: approximately HK$0.93 million). The
increase in both consolidated revenue and gross profit were mainly
due to the newly launched motor trading business and car park
spaces rental.

The loss for the year increased to approximately HK$106.89 million
from Previous Year'’s loss of approximately 68.9 million.

In calculating the Group’s consolidated net loss, the administrative
expenses of approximately HK$49.3 million (2015: approximately
HK$41.42 million) included major items, such as staff costs of
approximately HK$15.36 million, depreciation of approximately
HK$6.31 million, amortisation of intangible assets of approximately
HK$5 million, auditor’'s remuneration of approximately HK$0.78
million, operating leases charges of approximately HK$5.12 million
and forestry maintenance fee of HK$4 million charged by the
Group’s forestry manager.

Finance costs of HK$0.66 million which was mainly recorded for
interests on promissory note. Income tax credit was approximately
HK$16.7 million (2015: approximately HK$15.7 million) mainly
due to deferred tax credit of approximately HK$17.1 million (2015:
approximately HK$16.17 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2016, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$998.93 million (2015: approximately HK$985.80
million), including cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$81.36 million (2015: approximately HK$57.62 million). The
directors of the Company are of the view that the Group has
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

CAPITAL RAISING AND EXPENDITURE

As at 30 June 2016, details of movements in the issued share
capital of the Company is stated in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BUSINESS ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

As at 30 June 2016, apart from those as in note 30 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements, there was no major acquisition or
disposal undertaken by the Group.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 27 employees (2015:
23 employees) in both Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
implements remuneration policy, bonus and share options scheme
to ensure that pay scales of its employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s remuneration.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2016, there was no charge on the Group’s assets
(2015: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company have not recommenced the payment
of any dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015:
Nil).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
Since most of the transactions, income and expenditure of the
Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi, no
hedging or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have
been implemented.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2016, the directors of the Company are not aware of
any material contingent liabilities.

Yeung Chi Hang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yeung Chi Hang, aged 37, was appointed as Executive
Director on 16 January 2014. Mr. Yeung also was appointed as
the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company on 27
January 2015. Mr. Yeung is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yeung studied at Camosun College, Canada. He
has over 10 years of experience in investment, hotel management
and in operating entertainment businesses.

Mr. Leung Kwong Choi, aged 60, was appointed as Executive
Director on 6 October 2008. He is also the Chairman of the
investment committee of the Company. Mr. Leung holds a
Bachelor of Social Science Degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He had been working for 10 years in the marketing
department of Hang Lung Development Ltd. since graduation.
Mr. Leung had also served the positions of executive director of
Top Glory Holdings Ltd., China Food Ltd. and Cheung Tai Hong
Holdings Ltd., all of which are companies with shares listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Leung has over 28
years of real estate and business experience in Hong Kong and
the PRC concentrating in property investment and development,
acquisition and merger, deal marking and investment projects
arrangement. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of Top Spring International Holdings Limited (stock code:
3688).

Mr. Wong Po Keung, aged 45, was appointed as Executive
Director on 30 September 2013. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, the financial controller and a member
of the investment committee of the Company Mr. Wong holds a
Master degree in business administration from the University of
South Australia. He is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has ample experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and company secretarial
practices in respect of listed companies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFEMEE

Mr. Chung Siu Wah, aged 59, was appointed as Executive Director
on 14 August 2014. Mr. Chung started his career in 1976 by joining
the Hong Kong Government as a Customs Inspector. He obtained
his law degree with honour at the University of London in 1986 and
further obtained his Postgraduate Certificate of Laws at University
of Hong Kong in 1987. He resigned from the Customs and Excise
Department in 1987 and started his legal career. He has been a
solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since 1989. He joined Messer.
Tony Kan & Co. in 1987 and became a partner in 1992. He retired
from the partnership in 2004 but continues to associate with the law
firm as a consultant till now. Mr. Chung has over 8 year experience
in the hotel, gaming and entertainment industry. Mr. Chung has
also experience in the management of listed company at Hong
Kong. He was appointed as an executive director of Daido Group
Limited (stock code: 544) for the period from 9 September 2011 to
5 August 2013.

Mr. Chik To Pan, aged 37, was appointed as Executive Director
on 16 April 2016. He is the director of one of the Subsidiary of the
Company. Mr Chik has wide experience in licensing of karaoke
music products, operating entertainment businesses and wedding
service business. Mr. Chik has also experience in the management
of listed company at Hong Kong. He was appointed as an executive
director of United Power Investment Limited (now named as Culture
Landmark Investment Limited) (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) (stock code: 674) for the period from
8 March 2005 to 24 January 2008.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwai Sang, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 March 2009. He is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Wong had been an Independent
Non-executive Director, member of audit committee and member
of remuneration committee of the Company since 3 July 2002. He
resigned on 4 July 2008 as he himself had a long term personal
assignment stationed in Shanghai. Mr. Wong had completed his
assignment in Shanghai and returned to Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is a property consultant and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators and the Australian
Institute of Building respectively.
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Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 43, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director on 27 January 2014. He is also the chairman
of audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee. Mr. Ong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ong received a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and a master’s degree in corporate
finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ong
has more than 20 years of experience in accounting, finance and
company secretarial fields and held senior positions in finance and
company secretarial departments in various listed companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong is currently an
executive director of Deson Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8268). Mr. Ong is also an independent non-
executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), Hong
Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited (stock code: 1082) and
Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718), the shares
of all of which are listed on the Main Board, respectively. Mr. Ong
is also an independent non-executive director of Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited (stock code: 8351) and WLS
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021), the shares of all of which are
listed on GEM. He resigned as independent non-executive director
of KSL Holdings Limited (stock code: 8170) and King Force Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8315) with effect from 2 June 2016
and 19 September 2016, respectively.

Mr. Ong was a director of Fitness Concept International Holdings
Limited prior to its dissolution. The said company was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and was dissolved on 30 June 2005 by
striking off due to cessation of business.

Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric, aged 48, was appointed as Executive
Director on 16 January 2015. He is also a member of audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee.
He is a qualified solicitor admitted to the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages. Mr. Heung received a
bachelor’s degree in Law from University of Leicester England. He
has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession.

Mr. Heung is presently a partner of Messrs. Tung, Ng, Tse &
Heung, an independent non-executive director of Zhong Fa Zhan
Holdings Limited (stock code: 475), director of Lions Education
Foundation, director of Lions Clubs of Kwai Tsing HKSAR and
committee legal adviser of the Association of the Hong Kong
Members of Shandong’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He has resigned as independent non-executive
director of Gold Tat Group International Limited (stock code: 8266)
with effect from 3 March 2015.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board has pleasure to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in money lending business,
car park space rentals and motor vehicles trading, trading and
investment business and the business of research, development
and application of technologies and solutions, manufacture, sale,
trading and distribution of products, materials systems and services
for green market segments including the environmental markets,
agricultural markets, organic markets, green medical markets,
green technology markets in the PRC market and overseas.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 48.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators are set out in the section headed “Management’s Report”
on pages 4 to 10 of this annual report.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may
be facing can be found in the section headed “Management’s
Report” and Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 71 to 74 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

SEGMENTS INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
operating segments for the financial year is set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movement of share capital during the year

Details of the share capital of the Company and its movement

during the year ended 30 June 2016 are set out in Note 28 of the
consolidated financial statements.

14 CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

EETEUMAZIAEHBE_Z—RFAN
A=THLEFENFRREFXRFESMBER
%o

FEXK

ANBEBEBHREER - XEBIERS
BEER BUHEREESR  BENRKRE
X% pERBIIMEFET S (BRERERTS
BEMS - ATS  ZREeBETSERES
RAiHiE) R AR S RO R R ER - &
E & BERISEREER  MH - 26
R EEBHE -

E3 |
BE-—Z-R"EXAZTHLFEAEEXE
HNEBENGSBEERAME2ERER -

FBOEE

AEEzEBOERASEREEZMERE
ERSHZFARRIN  BRAFREIR
E10E[EEERE -6 -

755 [ 7] BE T B o LB % A~ B B R 3 o MRt R
RAFEH EREBRE | -HRETEET4ER
B RARMEES

9=

EEETERERBE_2—~<EXA
LEENRE(ZE-HF 1 F) -

SEBER

RAPBFERER DB D 2 A KB W ER
EEER D TERGS P IRRMEES o

+A

[N
TEERKEE
KATRBE-_E—ANESA=THIEEY

BRAFERASBERBENGS WHHRRME
28 °

Annual Report 2016



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHREE

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
50.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 June 2016 amounted
to HK$690.21 million. Under section 34 of the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”),
and no distribution may be paid to the Shareholders out of the
Company’s share premium unless the Company shall be able to
pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hang

Mr. Leung Kwong Choi

Mr. Wong Po Keung

Mr. Chung Siu Wah

Mr. Chik To Pan (appointed on 15 April 2016)
Mr. Chen Yuyang (resigned on 15 April 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwai Sang
Mr. Ong Chi King
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric

Mr. Chen Yuyang resigned as an executive director of the Company
on 15 April 2016 due to the need to devote more time to pursue his
other business commitments.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Pursuant to the Article of Association, Mr. Yeung Chi Hang,
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang and Mr. Ong Chi King, being the existing
Directors longest in office since their last re-election, will retire by
rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-election and
Mr. Chik To Pan, the newly appointed Director, will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company and its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of Independent
Non-executive Director, a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
The nomination committee of the Company and the Board
considered that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN BEENEESTHRAEREY - HEROR
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES B

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions held by each RZEBE—AEXA=1H KXATRAREERE
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates STHASMEE 2HB A RK QTR EFA
in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any HESEZE (NB)(EEREFSRAEKRM([F
of its associated corporation, if any, (within the meaning of Part XV % R EIE K51 1) EXVER) 2 IR 15 ~ 1HEEIRD
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (The “SFO”)), as recorded &5 HEERIEE 5 RS IGHI 5352154 A
in the resister required to be kept by the Company under Section TBIfiFBEE ML HEIEZRES ; REL
352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock ~ TR BIFT$&+ ATl L T AESEITEER
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions £ KZ%<FBI([EX<P R ) B S AN 7 R B
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in XAIZERZREANT :

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long Positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAEARATROBREBEROBZRE

Number of shares/underlying
shares held in the Company

R ARReHERGEA

Total interests

as to % to

the issued

Capacity in Interests share capital

which interests Interests  under equity Total as at 30 June

Name of Director are held in shares derivatives interests 2016

R-E—RE

AA=1+H

b g

REBRALTAE EERT

BEREZ2ER TEZRES LA [ NA=

(Note)

(Hzt)
Mr. Yeung Chi Hong Beneficial owner

BEEXE BEREBA 187,500,000 14,142,817 201,642,817 11.88%
Mr. Wong Po Keung Beneficial owner

ER®EE EREEA - 14,142,817 14,142,817 0.83%
Mr. Chung Siu Wah Beneficial owner

BOBEE BEREAA - 14,142,817 14,142,817 0.83%
Mr. Chik To Pan Beneficial owner

FBE L% EREEA - 14,142,817 14,142,817 0.83%

Note: M

The percentage of shareholding was calculated on the basis of the Company's ~FREDLER-ZE-A"FAA=TRADATBITRAE
issued share capital of 1,697,138,114 shares as at 30 June 2016. 1,697,138, 114851
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the
Directors, chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

U)

(i)

18

2005 Share Option Scheme

The 2005 share option scheme of the Company was approved
on 16 December 2005 (“2005 Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to provide the
Group with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, and/or providing benefits to the participant and
to provide the participant with the opportunity to acquire a
personal stake in the Group and to build common objectives
of the Group and the participant for the betterment of business
and profitability of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.
This scheme was valid and effective for a period of 10 years
since its adoption and has been terminated on 11 November
2015. No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year under 2005 Share Option Scheme. There
was no outstanding Share options and all options previously
granted but not exercised had already lapsed in August 2014.
The particulars relating to the 2005 Share Options Scheme are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2015.

2015 Share Option Scheme

Following the termination of the “2005 Share Option Scheme”,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme on 11 November 2015 (the “2015
Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2015 Share Option
Scheme is to provide the Group with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating and or providing benefits
to the eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons
with all opportunity to acquire a personal stake in the Group
and to build common objectives of the Group and the eligible
persons for the betterment of business and profitability of the
Group and the Shareholders as a whole. The 2015 Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from its adoption. An ordinary resolution was passed
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29 July 2016
to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the 2015 Share
Option Scheme. Based on 1,697,138,114 shares in issue of
the Company as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution,
the Company is allowed to grant further options under the
2015 Share Option Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
169,713,811 shares, representing 10% of the shares in issue of
the Company as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution
and as at the date of this report. The particulars relating to the
2015 Share Option Scheme and valuation of options are set
out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The following table set out movements in the Company’s shares T xEHIBE_E—AFERETZCEH>
options granted under the 2015 Share Options Scheme during the  AQFEREZFREE :

year:

Number of Share Options
EREHE
As at
Exercise As at 30 June
Category Date of grant price  Exercisable period 1 July 2015 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2016
i i
ZE-1% ZE-RE
£5 REAH e th-A BRH 2y G5 ] 8%  ~A=1H
(HK9)
(B7)
Directors
3
Yeung ChiHang 22 April 2016 0.2064 22 April 2016-21 April 2026
REE “E-RE “E-~EMAZTZRE
MAZtZH “Z-REMA=T-H - 14142817 - - - 14142817
Wong PoKeung 22 April 2016 0.2064 22 April 2016-21 April 2026
R ZE-RE ZZ-3EMAZTZRZ
MAZ+ZH ZECREMAZT-H - 14142817 - - - 14142817
Chung SiuWah 22 April 2016 0.2064 22 April 2016-21 April 2026
B ZE-5E —E-XEMA=t-gQZ
MA=TZH ZEZREMAZT-R - 14142817 - - - 14142817
Chik To Pan 22 April 2016 0.2064 22 April 2016-21 April 2026
FiEH, ZE-RE “Z-~EMAZTZRE
MAZ+ZH “ZZREMA=T-H - 14142817 - - - 14142817
Employee 22 April 2016 0.2064 22 April 2016-21 April 2026
8 “E-RE “E-AEBB-TZAE
MAZ+ZH ZECAEMAZT-H - 14142817 - - - 14142817
Total
a5 - 70,714,085 - - - 70,714,085

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the AN TREBRERL AHAIZROWTES
date of grant of the options was HK$0.202. 0.202& 7T °

As at 30 June 2016, options to subscribe for an aggregate of RZZE—XRFEARA=+H AIRBAARE
70,714,085 shares of the Company were outstanding, representing 70,714,085 R R 17 2 BB IR ERIEITE » 15 A<
4.17% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this  BIRAFIHRBH4.17% 2 BITRD °

report.

=
7N
n

No option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. BEBRENFERBEITE - EHHRN -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the following persons, other than Directors
or chief executive of the Company, were interested or had short
positions in more than 5% of shares and underlying shares of the
Company or its subsidiaries according to the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EFERRRKRG - HEARODRES 2ER

Ri5RE 5 R E RO E336RAMFER M
% RIBE-R"EXNA=ZTH  UTAL(E
FESHALARSTHRAR) BEADAH
HH A B2 R0 RABBRD5% U EmEE
AW :

RAEXTRDREAFERD ZRA

Number of shares/underlying
shares held in the Company

Capacity in
which interests
are held

Interests
in shares

Name of
Shareholders

BEERZ S0

Beneficial owner

BERERA

Mr. Chu Ying Man
RENFKE 135,000,000

Note:

The percentage of shareholding was calculated on the basis of the Company’s
issued share capital of 1,697,138,114 shares as at 30 June 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as Share Option Schemes disclosed above, at no time during
the year, was the Company or any of its associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the Directors or
their spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted any
right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any of its associated corporations.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 March 2015, Prima Choice Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, had entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Fortune Group Investment Limited
(1st Vendor) and Winbo Property Limited (2nd Vendor), pursuant
to which (i) the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire the Sale Shares; and
(i) the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell and assign and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to take up an assignment of the
Sale Loan. The Transaction Consideration for the Acquisition will be
satisfied by a combination of cash and by issue of the Promissory
Note by the Company. Upon Completion, the Target Company will
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
completion took place on 3 July 2015.

Mrs. Ma Shu Chin, mother of Mr. Yeung Chi Hang, an executive
Director, the Chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company owned 60% of each of the 1st Vendor and 2nd Vendor,
therefore both Vendors are connected persons of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules. As some of the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) in respect
of the Acquisition exceed 25% but below 100%, the Acquisition
constitutes a major and connected transaction of the Company and
is therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and the
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the following continuing connected
transaction which is subject to disclosure requirement in the annual
report under the Listing Rules:

On 6 August 2015, International Richway Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as tenant, has entered into the
Tenancy Agreement with High Brand Limited as landlord, in respect
of the leasing of the Property for a term of 11 months and 26 days
commencing from 6 August 2015 with a rental of HK$166,075 per
month. As High Brand Limited is a company which is indirectly
owned as to 50% by Ms. Ma Shu Chin, mother of Mr. Yeung Chi
Hang, an executive Director, the Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company and a substantial shareholders, High
Brand Limited is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and the Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to carry out assurance
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has reported the conclusion to the board of directors by
confirming the matters as stated in Rule 14A.38, where applicable.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by the
Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 14A.72 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The related party transaction disclosed in Note 35(a) to the
consolidated financial statements was a connected transaction for
which the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules have been met and are mentioned in the above paragraph.
Other related party transaction taken place in financial year ended
30 June 2016 which was disclosed in Note 35(b) to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “connected transaction”
and “continuing connected transaction”, no transactions,
arrangement or contracts of significance, to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significant, to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party in which a Shareholder had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

The Board is of the opinion that during the year ended 30 June
2016, the Directors did not have interests in any businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
on the Stock Exchange.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 27 employees (2015:
23 employees) in both Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
implements remuneration policy, bonus and share options scheme
to ensure that pay scales of its employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s remuneration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources
and the adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses
underlie its commitment to safeguarding the environment. The
Group encourages environmental protection, complies with
environmental legislations and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to its employees. Several measures have
been implemented by the Group in order to promote environmental
protection, including, among others:

(i) promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch
off all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office,
and to utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning
systems;

(i) reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light
bulbs in the corridors and the reception area of its offices;

(iii) promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for
collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and
by encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch
papers;

(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example,
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by
automatic faucets in offices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2016 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in the mainland China and Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as disclosed in the Annual

Report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director, in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 83% of the total sales for
the year and the sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 26%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 91% of the total purchases
for the year and the purchase from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 52%.

None of Directors, any of their associates or any substantial
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group’s management policies, working environment, career
prospects and employees’ benefits have contributed to building a
good employee relations and employee retention of the Group. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance, provident
funds, bonuses and a share option scheme. The management
regularly reviews its employee’s remuneration packages to ensure
they are up to prevailing market standard.
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The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable
suppliers, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental
and product criteria. During the year ended June 2016 and up to the
date of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its
suppliers. The Group has a well-established business relationship
with the customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

The Group successfully raised over HK$46.67 million through the
Placing Shares to not less than six independent Placees at the
Placing Price of HK$0.165 per Placing Share on 13 May 2016 in
order to enlarge capital base, strengthen the Group’s financial
position for future development and working capital position. The
Placing Price of HK$0.165 per Placing Share represents (i) a
discount of approximately 18.32% to the closing price of HK$0.202
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26 April 20186,
being the date of the Placing Agreement; and (ii) a discount of
approximately 19.51% to the average closing price of HK$0.205 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including 25 April 2016.

Upon the completion of the Placing, the Company received a gross
proceeds of approximately HK$46.67 million and a net proceeds
from the Placing, after deducting relevant expenses incurred
in relation to the Placing, amount to approximately HK$45.61
million. As at 30 June 2016, the Group has not utilized any of
the net proceeds from such Placing. The unutilized portion of
the net proceeds is currently held in cash and cash equivalents
and it is intended that it will be applied in the manner consistent
with the intended use of proceeds as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 April 2016.
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AUDITORS

On 24 June 2014, Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited resigned as
auditors of the Company and on 30 June 2014, ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited was appointed as auditors of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2016 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited as auditors of the Company. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Environmental Resources Group Limited
Yeung Chi Hang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2016
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EREIWE

The Board is committed to maintain and ensure high standards
of corporate governance practice. The Company stresses the
importance of maintaining the quality of the Board by ensuring that
the Directors possess a wide range of expertise and the effective
implementation of an accountability system, so as to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in
a proper manner.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 30 June
2016, except the followings:

Code provisions A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman of the board and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. This code
provisions also stipulate, inter alia, the role and responsibility of the
chairman of the board and the chief executive.

Mr. Yeung Chi Hang was appointed as chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 27 January 2015.
Thereafter, Mr. Yeung Chi Hang has assumed both roles, The
directors were of the view that the vesting of the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer in the same person can
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
for more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, as well as ensuring effective oversight of management.
The directors were also of the view that the present structure
was considered to be appropriate under the circumstances of
the Company. The Board would keep review of its current board
stricture from time to time.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Yeung
Chi Hang was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 November 2015 due to business trips. Mr.
Wong Po Keung, an executive director, was elected and acted as
chairman of the said annual general meeting.
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ERELIWE

THE BOARD

The Board is charged with the responsibility of leadership and
control of the Group. The Board promotes success of the Group
and makes decisions objectively in the best interests of the Group.
The Board’s role is mainly to direct and supervise the affairs of
the Group, establish its strategic directions and set objectives
and business development plans. The Board authorizes the
management to manage the day-to-day business operation of
the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the various Board committees and the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved to the
Board for decisions. The Board will review those arrangements on
a regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of
the Company.
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ERELIRS

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises eight Directors with five Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yeung Chi Hang, Mr. Leung Kwong Choi,
Mr. Wong Po Keung, Mr. Chung Siu Wah and Mr. Chik To Pan and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Kwai Sang, Mr. Ong Chi King and Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric.

During the year, the Board held 7 meetings, including 4 regular
meetings, and had also transacted its business by written
resolutions. The Directors participated these meetings in person
or through electronic means of communication. The attendance
of Board meetings of each Director during the year is set out as
below:

Name of Directors

BEEHR

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yeung Chi Hang BEELE

Mr. Leung Kwong Choi REAKE

Mr. Wong Po Keung BRELE

Mr. Chung Siu Wah EOMERE

Mr. Chik To Pan (Note 1) FUENE ST (fraET)
Mr. Chen Yuyang (Note 2) BRFIB Sk (ffat2)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Ong Chi King T FEREE

Mr. Wong Kwai Sang EEEEE

Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric SERIESEE

Notes:

1. Mr. Chik To Pan was appointed as Executive Director on 15 April 2016.

2. Mr. Chen Yuyang resigned as Executive Director on 15 April 2016.
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The Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior management
for information and making enquires if necessary. A Director, who
considers there is necessary to seek independent professional
advice in order to perform his duties as a Director, may convene,
or request the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) to convene, a Board meeting to approve the
consultation of independent legal or other professional adviser for
advice at the Company’s expenses.

For regular Board meeting, a notice of the meeting is sent to all
Directors at least 14 days before the intended date of meeting and
an agenda and accompanying board papers of the meeting are
sent to all Directors at least three days before the intended date
of meeting. For all other Board meeting, a notice of the meeting
together with an agenda and accompanying board papers of the
meeting are sent to all Directors in reasonable time. The Directors
also from time to time transact the Board business by way of written
resolutions.

Every Director is entitled to have access to the advice and service
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensure that the Board
procedures and applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. All minutes are kept by the Company and are open for
inspections by any Director during normal office hours by giving
reasonable advance notice. Minutes of the Board meetings and the
Board committee meetings record in sufficient details the matters
considered in the meetings and decisions reached. Draft and final
versions of minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings have been sent to all Directors and relevant Board
Committee members for their comments and records respectively
within a reasonable time after the relevant meetings were held.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter before the Board,
the matter will be dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and
regulations and, if appropriate, an independent board committee
will be set up to deal with the matter.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship(s) between the
members of the Board.
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Every Director has sufficient time and attention to deal with the
affairs of the Group. The Board considers the composition of
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
is rational and appropriate and provides adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors provide the Group with
diversified knowledge and expertise. Their suggestions, opinions
and participation in the meetings of the Board and each Board
committee bring independent opinions, suggestions and judgments
on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, development, operations,
performance, risk control and conflicts of interest, to ensure that the
interest of all shareholders are taken into account.

Information and responsibilities of all Directors are contained in this
annual report on pages 11 to 13.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
have different roles. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for the operation of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for managing the operations and day-to-day
management of the Group. Their functions have been clearly
divided to ensure a balanced distribution of power and authority not
concentrating on a single individual.

The Chairman of the Board is principally responsible for leading
the Board and ensures the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman of the Board shall ensure the Board
operates effectively and performs its proper duties and discusses all
important and proper matters in a timely manner. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board meeting,
and ensuring that Directors are provided sufficient information on
current matters in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as
to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, the
Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff and
encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and
effective operation of the Company’s operations and systems.
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Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provide that the role of
chairman of the board and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. This code
provisions also stipulate, inter alia, the role and responsibility of the
chairman of the board and the chief executive.

Mr. Yeung Chi Hang was appointed as Chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company 27 January 2015.
Thereafter, Mr. Yeung Chi Hang has therefore assumed both
roles. The Directors were of the view that the vesting of the roles
of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allow for more effective planning and execution of long-term
business strangles, as well as ensuring effective oversight of
management. The Directors were also of the view that the present
structure was considered to be appropriate under the circumstances
of the Company. The Board would keep review of its current Board
structure from time to time.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the CG Code and the Articles of Association,
all Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.
Composition of the Board will be reviewed regularly by the
Board and also by the nomination committee of the Company to
ensure that it covers a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

Pursuant to the Article of Association, Mr. Yeung Chi Hang,
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang and Mr. Ong Chi King, being the existing
Directors longest in office since their last re-election, will retire by
rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-election and
Mr. Chik To Pan, the newly appointed Director, will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

Each Director had entered into an appointment letter with
the Company setting out the key terms and conditions of his
appointment. The Directors are required to refer to the relevant
key terms and conditions as set out in the Articles and Association
and the guidelines for Directors and Guide for Independent
Non-executive Directors (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.
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All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association. The term of office of Mr. Wong Kwai Sang, Mr. Ong
Chi King and Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric as Independent Non-
executive Director is for three years until 1 March 2018, 27 January
2017 and 16 January 2018 respectively.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director a written annual confirmation of his independence and is
satisfied with their independence in accordance with the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with the term of references in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ong Chi King
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Kwai Sang and Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric.
Mr. Ong Chi King has appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee includes:

1. torecommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,

and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

2. to consider and discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of audit for each year;

3. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

4. to review the interim and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board and to discuss any problem and
reservation arising therefrom;

5. to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; and

6. to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed and discussed,
in accordance with its terms of reference, the financial reporting
matters with external auditor, including the review of the interim
and annual consolidated financial statements, the internal control
and the audit fee and made recommendation to the Board for
re-appointment of external auditor.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings and had

transacted its business by written resolutions. The attendance of
Audit Committee meetings of each member is set out below:

Name of the Audit Committee Members

BEREEERENE

Mr. Ong Chi King T FEREE
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang EEESE
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric SEESEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with the term of references in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Ong Chi King (Chairman), Mr. Wong Kwai Sang and
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee (as adopted
pursuant to the terms of references of the Remuneration
Committee) includes making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure of all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for development of remuneration policy.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done during the year:

1. to recommend the remuneration of Mr. Chik To Pan as new
Executive Director;

2. to review the Company’s emolument policy and structure for all
Directors;

3. to review management’s remuneration proposal with reference
to the corporate goals and objective of the Board; and

4. torecommend the remuneration of individual Executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Director.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting
and had also transacted its business by written resolutions. The
attendance of Remuneration Committee meeting of each member is
set out below:

Name of Remuneration Committee
Members

FHESERESE

Mr. Ong Chi King T FEREE
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang EEESLE
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric SEEEE

The Company’s emolument policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees, including Executive Directors
and the senior management, is based on the skills, knowledge,
responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s affairs. The
remuneration packages are also determined by reference to the
Company’s performance and profitability, remuneration level in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. The emolument
policy for Independent Non-executive Directors, mainly comprising
Directors’ fees, is subject to annual assessment with reference to
the market standard. Individual Director and the senior management
would not be involved in deciding their own remuneration.

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest-paid

employees of the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with the term of references in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Mr. Ong Chi King (Chairman), Mr. Wong Kwai Sang and Mr. Heung
Chee Hang, Eric.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee includes review
of the structure, size and composition of the Board and board
diversity policy on a regular basis, assessing new candidates for
appointment as Directors and the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and considering the retirement and re-
election of the Directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination Committee
done during the year:

1. to note the resignation of Mr. Chen Yuyang as Executive
Director;

2. to consider the background and knowledge of Mr. Chik To Pan
and recommend to the Board for appointed of Mr. Chik To Pan
as Executive Director;

3. to assess the independence of each Independent Non-
executive Director;

4. to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

5. to make the recommendation of re-election of retiring Directors
to the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting and had
also transacted its business by written resolutions. The attendance
of Nomination Committee meetings of each member is set out
below:

Name of Nomination Committee

Members

REZEERENHA

Mr. Ong Chi King FFHEE
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang BEEERE
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric REEE

REZES
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board has established an investment committee, which
currently comprises two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung
Kwong Choi (Chairman) and Mr. Wong Po Keung. During the
year, the investment committee of the Company had not held any
meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has from time to time considered its policy for corporate
governance and its duties and duties of various board committees.
The Board has not established a corporate governance committee
but has performed the obligations regarding corporate governance,
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

5. toreview the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report) of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have disclosed to the Board the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
signification commitments. The Board will regularly review the
contribution required by each Director to perform his responsibilities
to the Company and whether he is spending sufficient time
performing his duties.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“the Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board in order to maintain a competitive advantage of
the Board. Pursuant to Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other qualities. The Board
will from time to time consider to set measurable objectives
to implement the Policy and review such objectives to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objective. During the year, the Board has not set
any measurable objectives to implement the Policy.
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TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Director are provided with necessary information
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under
the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The Company
Secretary and representative of auditor update the Directors on
the latest development and changes regarding the Listing Rules,
accounting standards and other relevant regulatory requirements
from time to time.

In addition, the Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and position to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. According to the records provided by the existing
Directors, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during the year.
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Notes: oz
1. Mr. Chik To Pan was appointed as Executive Director on 15 April 2016. 1.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance for all Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate
activities.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s Code of
Conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 30 June 2016.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable but not
absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievements of the Group’s objectives.

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, their training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lo Tai On who has been engaged
and appointed by the Company from an external secretarial
services provider.

The primary contact persons with the Company Secretary are
Mr. Wong Po Keung, an Executive Director and the financial
controller of the Company, and Ms. Ng Wing Suen, an officer of
the Company. The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group in presenting
the interim and annual consolidated financial statements and
announcements to the Shareholders. The Directors aim to present
a clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and
prospects.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports, other insider information announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and to report
to the regulators.

The responsibility of the external auditor with respect to the financial
reporting and its audit opinion are set out in the section “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 46 to 47.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITOR

For the year, the remuneration in respect of audit services provided
by auditor of the Company, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, was
HK$780,000.

The non-audit service provided by former auditor of the Company is
detailed as follows:
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Review service for the interim results for the
six months ended 31 December 2015
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with the Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through
a number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company are valuable forum for
the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”). The Shareholders are encouraged
to attend the general meetings of the Company.

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on
2 July 2015 (the “EGM”) to approve the major and connected
transactions of the Company. The members of independent board
committee attended the EGM to answer the questions from the
Shareholders. An annual general meeting of the Company was
held on 11 November 2015 (the “2015 AGM”). A notice convening
the 2015 AGM contained in a circular of the Company dated 12
October 2015 was dispatched to the Shareholders together with the
2015 Annual Report.

As Mr. Yeung Chi Hang was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 11 November 2015 due to
business trips. Mr. Wong Po Keung, an Executive Director, was
elected and acted as Chairman of the 2015 AGM. He together
with the board committees members attended the 2015 AGM to
answer the questions from the Shareholders. The Chairman of the
2015 AGM explained detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
All the resolutions proposed at the 2015 AGM were passed by the
Shareholders by way of poll. The results of the poll were published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange, the Singapore Stock
Exchange and the Company on 11 November 2015.
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The attendance of general meetings held during the year of each &EZEHEFRNETZREASWEREHTIRN
Director is set out below: T

Number of general meetings
attended/Number of general

Name of Directors meetings held
EHERRAZRE
EEHE EEBENBRRAERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yeung Chi Hang BEELE 0/2
Mr. Leung Kwong Choi REFFE 2/2
Mr. Wong Po Keung BERBEE 2/2
Mr. Chung Siu Wah B RESESE 0/2
Mr. Chik To Pan (Note 1) BUEXE ST (fraET) N/ATE A
Mr. Chen Yuyang (Note 2) BRFI5 S (ffa2) 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Ong Chi King AL 1/2
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang EEELE 0/2
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, Eric SEESE 0/2
Notes: Biat -
1. Mr. Chik To Pan was appointed as Executive Director on 15 April 2016. 1. RERAER-Z—<EUNA+RAEZEAFT
BEo
2. Mr. Chen Yuyang resigned as Executive Director on 15 April 2016. 2. BEBAER-_Z—"ENATHEAREHITE
=
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The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on 9 November 2016 (the “2016 AGM”). A notice convening
2016 AGM will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange,
the Singapore Stock Exchange and the Company and dispatched
together with the 2016 Annual Report to the Shareholders as soon
as practicable in accordance with the Article of Association and the
CG Code.

During the year, there was no change in the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
at such place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”). Set out below are
procedures by which Shareholders may (a) convene an EGM; (b)
put forward enquires to the Board; and (c) put forward proposals
at general meetings. The procedures are subject to the Articles of
Association and applicable legislation and regulation.

— Procedures for Shareholders to convene EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the business to be transacted
at the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at
the Company’s registered office (with a copy of the said written
requisition deposited at the Company’s Hong Kong office)
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed
by one or more requisitionists. The requisition will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
requirements under the Articles of Association to all the
registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has
been verified as invalid, the requisitionist(s) will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.
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If within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

— Not less than 14 clear days’ and not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company; and

— Not less than 21 clear days’ and not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or by email to
info@greencer.com for the attention of the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written request, duly signed by
the Shareholder concerned, setting out the proposals at the
Company’s registered office (with a copy of the said written
request lodged at the Company’s Hong Kong office) for the
attention of the Board and the Company Secretary. The request
will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will pass the request
to the Board. Whether a proposal will be put to a general
meeting will be decided by the Board in its discretion, unless
the proposal put forward by a Shareholder is (i) pursuant to a
requisition by a Shareholder to convene an EGM referred to
above or (ii) forms part of ordinary business to be considered
at an annual general meeting as described in Article 75 of the
Articles of Association.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director are posted on the Company’s website at
http://www.greencer.com/.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED
HERBEEREEAR AR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Resources Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as, the “Group”) set out
on pages 48 to 107, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong,
28 September 2016

BERTESRITRFUNSHERZSUHR
ERHEERREETENELRE - BINZS
R EURN BN B - BEHERE I
BREREARERIL (T REEERFRE
Mol MER o FHZERBEEE - 2B
fMZEENRREREEEM A AMSIRERS I
BHRRABAPAIMEE - RIENRABEEFR
B BAFRARANABEZEEENRE
BR - ERIETEEFEESMRANS
BRRERERFMENSHEERESE - U
KEBEGFEUBHRROBB2I AR -

ESHFECHSAIRENELER RES
MEZSRREMAER

EERR  GAVBBRREBETERR &
EER_Z2-REXA=ZTBHENFBHMRR
kR BEEBE-—Z-REAA=+THLEE
M BERARRERE © KEVBHRRERE
BEEMBRELENZAEREFEEE(LT
RBDWERE o

FEZESMEEAERAT
HEEE

HEEE

N ERIEIEP03614

&g
—E-AFhAZTNE

“—EAEER HERSERKEERAT 47

L *§

«*



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
p) AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= A JE A 2
‘ .' '*"1‘ = ?Eﬂ& Eﬂ%ﬁ“&ﬂi For the year ended 30 June 2016 BE—F— R FARA=THLFE
o°
2016
—E-XRE
Notes HK$°000
M TEx
Revenue g 7 13,365 2,733
Cost of sales SHERA (8,220) (1,800)
Gross profit EF 5,145 933
Other income Hg A 9 3 2,214
Administrative expenses THEX (49,301) (41,415)
Net gain/(loss) on fair value BRAREABRZ
changes on financial assets at ERMEEZAREES 2
fair value through profit or loss Wi (&8 FE (33,161) 30,845
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BWE AR B8 31 (12) —
Loss arising from changes in EMEEAARBEEB
fair value less costs to sell of WHEREEEZ
biological assets &8 18 (45,603) (77,172)
Loss from operations REEE (122,929) (84,595)
Finance costs BE KA 10 (661) (6)
Loss before tax BRBAIER (123,590) (84,601)
Income tax credit FrieBiER 11 16,704 15,700
Loss for the year FEEBE 12 (106,886) (68,901)
Other comprehensive (loss)income BREi%EM2E(EE),
after tax: WA :
Items that may be reclassified to HREER BRI 2
profit or loss: IHH

Exchange differences on translation & EMERZER

of foreign operations (36,979) 1,246
Other comprehensive (loss)lincome FREMZEH(EE),
for the year, net of tax Wz (BB (36,979) 1,246
Total comprehensive loss for FEXHEEBESE
the year (143,865) (67,655)
Loss for the year attributable to: TIATEEFESRE
Owners of the Company ROBEBA (106,609) (68,901)
Non-controlling interest R R (277) —
(106,886) (68,901)
Total comprehensive loss for the year T3 A LtEEFEZRH
attributable to: EIE4A%E
Owners of the Company RAEEBA (143,588) (67,655)
Non-controlling interest R R (277) —
(143,865) (67,655)
(Restated)
(#=E5))
Loss per share BRER 14
Basic (HK cents per share) BER(BRENWL) (8) (6)
Diluted (HK cents per share) EE(ZREWL) (8) (6)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ﬁéﬂ#ﬁﬂfﬁﬂi At 30 June 2016 R=Z—A"FRA=1H

2016
—B-AfE
HK$°000
FHw

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MEKRE 16 5,765 1,816
Investment properties REME 17 134,347 —
Biological assets EYERE 18 547,224 634,119
Intangible asset B ERE 19 110,011 123,091
Secured deposit paid for WEMB AR 2
acquisition of subsidiaries ENEEFRE — 42,000
Goodwill 5k 20 1,087 —
798,434 801,026
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 21 8,576 —
Trade and other receivables FEUR BRI H At FEUR R IE 22 22,051 8,551
Loans receivable EWRER 23 13,072 5,010
Financial assets at fair value BEARBEABRZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 24 5,433 43,587
Refundable secured deposit RECEAZRS 25 70,000 70,000
Bank and cash balances RITRIESER 81,359 57,622
200,491 184,770
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables FEAT BR AR R ELfth P& 50 IE 26 9,258 8,128
Current tax liabilities REHIEEE 7,976 7,889
17,234 16,017
Net current assets REEERSE 183,257 168,753
Total assets less current liabilities EEAFRREAE 981,691 969,779
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEEE 27 164,324 193,745
164,324 193,745
NET ASSETS EEFHE 817,367 776,034
Capital and reserves EARREE
Share capital B 28 33,943 18,857
Reserves & 783,710 757,177
Equity attributable to owners RARER AELER
of the Company 817,653 776,034
Non-controlling interest RS (286) —
TOTAL EQUITY AR 817,367 776,034

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 107 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
September 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yeung Chi Hang

BEE
Director

EF

FASENOTEFHG S UBRRDILEETERN
—E-AEAAZHN\BHERE#ERT X

HUTESARESEHE !

Leung Kwong Choi
REF
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TaEREEE
" v = ﬂ For the year ended 30 June 2016 HE-—Z—AFEAB=1+HILLFE
oe

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADFFE AL

Foreign
Share Share-based currency Non-

premium Statutory Capital compensation translation Accumulated controlling
account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interest Total
RGBSR AERE  RARE ROMEREE NEIREE  ZiiEE A FEREs 2%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tén Tén TEn TEn Tén Tén TEn Tix Tén Tén

At1 July 2014 R=F-MELA-A 18,857 969,958 5407 76 990 80,229 (231,828) 843,689 - 843,689
Total comprehensive loss ~ FE2AHIELE

forthe year - - - - — M6 (6BO01)  (676%) — e
Lapsed of share options ~~ BIREL N - - - - (990) - 990 - - -
At 30 June 2015 RZE-REAAZTH 18,857 969,958 5407 76 - 81475 (299,739) 776,034 - 776,034
At1 July 2015 W_E-1EtA-H 18,857 969,958 5,407 76 - 81,475 (299,739) 716,034 - 776,034
Total comprehensive loss 2B

forthe year - - - - — (36979 (106609)  (143,568) @ (143865)
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEEHEAT - - - - - - - - 9 )
Openofler (rote 28())  ABRE(WE280) 0 132 - - - - — 167 - 1R
Share option BRE - - - - 6,023 - - 6,923 = 6,023
Placing of new shares under - RRERETRR

general mandate (Hi28(i)

(note 28(i) 5657 3995 - - - - - e - M
At 30 June 2016 RZE-AEARAZTH 33,943 1,133,156 5,407 76 6,923 44,496 (406,348) 817,653 (286) 817,367
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GLReRESR
iy =1 EE ’)“’E For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—<XEAA=+HLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E-5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET B
Cash flows from operating activities RETBABESER
Loss before tax BRBiRIEE (123,590) (84,601)
Adjustments for: ERTHBERE
Depreciation e 6,310 859
Finance costs B AR 661 6
Net loss/(gain) on fair value changes on RARETFABHEZ
financial assets at fair value through TREEANBEREZ
profit or loss BB (W) F5 33,161 (30,845)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment RE2ERE () 822 (19)
Amortisation of intangible asset B EEHE 4,996 5,267
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMELRZEE 12 —
Loss arising from changes in fair value EMEELABERER
less costs to sell of biological assets HERAEEZER 45,603 77,172
Equity-settled share-based payments AR S E AR 10 B EBI 6,923 —
Operating loss before working capital changes &E&ES#Fa v KEEE (25,102) (32,161)
Changes in financial assets at RARBETABHEZ
fair value through profit or loss THEELSD 4,993 (8,989)
Change in inventories FEZE (8,575) —
Change in trade and other receivables FEUk BRFR K EL A FE U SR IE 2 B (17,871) 5,486
Change in loans receivable W EREE (8,062) (5,010)
Change in trade and other payables FEATBR AN EL A PE (S TR IE 2 B 1,032 (353)
Cash used in operations REFTARS (53,585) (41,027)
Income tax paid EEEH (200) —
Interests paid ERFE (661) (6)
Net cash used in operating activities RETETARSTE (54,446) (41,033)
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GLReRES
" v =1 EE ’)“’E For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=THLFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2016
—EB—RE

HK$’000
TERT

2015
—ZT-—EHEF
HK$'000
TET

Cash flows from investing activities REZBMBRER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE RERREE (3,591) (466)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BER

plant and equipment BAEFBRIE = 60
Purchase of investment properties W EME (36,514) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries R BB MY A F (1,001) —
Proceeds from disposals of a subsidiary HE— BB AR RERIE 1,005 —
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, W BER

plant and equipment RECHEE — (3,000)
Refund of deposit paid in relation to REKEHBAR

acquisition of a subsidiary 2ff%e — 80,000
Deposit paid in relation to acquisition of U BB BT /BB 1 B)

a subsidiary [RERE & — (42,000)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE(FTA),/ s

investing activities HeRE (40,101) 34,594
Cash flows from financing activities RETEERER
Repayment of finance lease payables BERGRERE = (96)
Repayment of promissory note EBEALER (60,000) —
Net proceeds from the open offer NEBEMSIIEFEE 132,673 —
Net proceeds from the placing of new shares EEMRTERIEFE 45,611 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEHME(FTA)

financing activities HeRE 118,284 (96)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRERBLBEAEM

cash equivalents (R )55 23,737 (6,535)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERSE N E = —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ¥ 2BRERERRLIER 57,622 64,157
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FHRBERERRSER 81,359 57,622
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents REeRERRELEB O
Bank and cash balances RITRIAEEEER 81,359 57,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

China Environmental Resources Group Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Ugland
House, South Church Street, P.O. Box 309, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The
address of its principal place of business is Room 2811, 28/F,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and Singapore Exchange Limited.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”) are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 July 2015.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standard, and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
biological assets which are carried at their fair values less
costs to sell and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are carried at their fair values. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors of the Company
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgments and
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-
date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which
is attributed to the Company.

ma AR
REMBHRREBEARARAWERTE
ERNA=THIEZBBRRE - WBARR
EAREHHEBEEEHENERE - XK
EAZNEZFSHEBESH 2O
BRI EBEUERNEIZEZSD
s AIAEREZEGZER -  EAKEN
RERIBTHEZEEEER (B AR
FEERELBNER)E - AIXAKEHZE
RBITERED -

ERHEEGER  AREEZEAEER
SRURAEMATHENETIRERE U
EEHRORBESE EFEARER
TREECTREENIERT  FEZEHEE
Ao

MEARERHEEREZAREZARS
AR - MEESIEL L2 BBEFILLGRSA

KERRAEZRS ~ G AREREF
YT - RERZREBZERNE
HREEHRBRE BAREREB/TTU
Ui MAEFTE  MEBLARZSBRS
EHFRR - URRFSAEBRAZBER -

ERasREE
REZESUIHBRBHBLRIZKESS
FRE o WBRARRBBERRRNE
E FBRTRAIA  FELRERIA
REZAAEFE - BRBEBEZEAR
EERARESRE 2 HEEIAR/MA -
PGB B AR 2 TR EER B ERE
BERZARERE -

W B B AN B H A B 0 Y B X B) AT Rk
BERBBZAAFEZEZREUFET
IR - ARRMARBEEREBE AR
FESRBBR A 2 ZBHAEREREEFIH
FEAEIABARDF ZEBERE R

“E-AEER HERSERKEERAT 55

L *§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+HLFE

56

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses of
goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are
not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case incomes
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rate is as follows:

Over the shorter of 20%—
33% or the remaining
unexpired terms of the
leases

19%—-33%

Leasehold improvement

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Cruiser 30%

Motor vehicle 10%—20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property
is measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to
allocate the cost to the residual value over its estimated useful
life of 30.5 years.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ - —<FARB=THLFE

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

(i) Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 30 years.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Biological assets

A biological asset is defined as a living plant managed by
the Group which is involved in the agricultural activity of the
transformation of biological assets for sale, into agricultural
produce, or into additional biological assets.

Biological assets comprise standing timbers in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), which are stated at fair value
less costs to sell at initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition,
and subsequent change in fair values less costs to sell of
biological assets is recognised in profit or loss in the reporting
period in which it arises. Costs to sell are the incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding
finance costs and taxes, standing timber is transferred to
inventory at its fair value less costs to sell at the date of
harvest.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment
within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade, loans and other receivables

Trade, loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An
allowance for impairment of trade, loans and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the
date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of plantation products, trading of
plantation materials and motor vehicles are recognised on
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered
and the title has passed to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Green technology advisory fee income is recognised when the
service is rendered, provided that the costs involved can be
measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based compensation
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A)

(B)

CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except biological assets, goodwill, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, inventories and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Fair values of biological assets

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the biological assets.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

(b) Impairment of intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period. Such assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an assets or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. To calculate the fair value
less costs to sell, the management estimates the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to derive the
present value of those cash flows.

(c) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

V)

(9

CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade, loan and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness, collateral security, financial condition and
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification of
bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste and competitor actions. The
Group will reassess the estimates by the end of each
reporting period.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi which are the functional currencies of
the principal operating entities of the Group. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

(b) Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price
risk. The directors manage this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange.

At 30 June 2016, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 10%, profit or loss for the year would
have been HK$454,000 (2015: HK$3,640,000) higher/
lower, arising as a result of the fair value gain/loss of the
investment.
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CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

(c) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss included in the statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 39% (2015:
Nil) and 99% (2015: Nil) of the Group’s trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is limited because the counterparty is a well-
established securities broker firm in Hong Kong.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 30
June 2016 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables and loans receivable. In order to
minimise credit risk, the directors have delegated a team to
be responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the
directors review the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and loan debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as
follows:

5. TREREEE)

(d) REBE SRR
AEEHNHRREPERRRK KA
RBESER  BREFZEZNRS
REAEEARRIRBESTE

AEEEREECIHAIHTOT

Within Total
1yearor undiscounted Carrying
on demand cash flow amounts

—F LR AERRE

REER REHAE SREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TEr TER TEr

At 30 June 2016 R-ZB-XEXA=1+H
Trade and other payables FETBRIE R H A BT FRIE

3,126 3,126 3,126

Within Total
1 year or undiscounted Carrying
on demand cash flow amounts

—FLR RERBRE
HEER MEREE AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET TET

At 30 June 2015 RZE—-HFXA=1H
Trade and other payables FEf BRI A e FRIE 2,271 2,271 2,271
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIEEB:

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 5. TREEE(E)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at 30 June 2016 ) R=B—ARER-FB-HFAA=T
and 2015 BeEmT a5
2016 2015
—B—RF —Z-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx F#ET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair value EBEREAAEBEREZ
through profit or loss: TREE
Held for trading BEEE 5,433 43,587
Loans and receivables (including BEXRRERREEERER
cash and cash equivalents): Z£RELER) :
Trade receivables, net of allowances FEUBRFR (B INBREME) 4,873 —
Loans receivable EWER 13,072 5,010
Deposits and other receivables, Re R HMERRRIE
net of allowances (B RREE) 1,353 4,442
Refundable secured deposit TRECIEKFRS 70,000 70,000
Cash and bank balances RERBITEE 81,359 57,622
176,090 180,661
Financial liabilities cRas
Other financial liabilities measured at BB R AT 22 HAth
amortised cost: SREE
Other payables and accruals HAth FE{S FE R FESTFUE 3,126 2,271
(9) Fair values (9) AAE B
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REMBRRRFIAAEEEREE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated kemBENEEEEESZENAR
statement of financial position approximate their respective BEEE -
fair values.
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June 2016:

DRABZERRTHSRERTERHE
TRAEFRZPHEREMBNRNERS
B 2B o LT R REBRERE
Rz ARERR  SEERMARAE AR
BaR=(AF%  LUtELQRE:

F—RWARE  ARERTE AT
SHEEENEENERHERE (CREH
E

F_RWARE  EERBEVEERE
BRBEECBARE  F-RABEIBER
o

B=RBARE EEREBEZTITER
i -

FEBzHRABRABENRFRIRRE
HEYZEB CAPLEZE=ASR2E
AEARE -

R -

Fair value measurements using: Total
FEAATHABEZAAETE st
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
Bt E—& EZR B=H it 23
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT BT FTERT FTET
Recurring fair value BEMDNE
measurements: &
Biological assets EHEE — 547,224 — 547,224
Financial assets at fair ~ #ERQAEFA
value through profit BRz
or loss — CREE-
listed securities in BB LhES
Hong Kong 5,433 — — 5,433
Total recurring fair value &E 42 AE
measurements STEMALE 5,433 547,224 = 552,657
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. AREFEE)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June 2015: R-ZE—REANA=THZAREE
BIE
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRAUATEARIEZ D AEE o
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
it £ b E=4 —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET FTAT
Recurring fair value KEMENRE
measurements: &
Biological assets EMEE — 634,119 — 634,119
Financial assets at fair R AfEFTA
value through profit BRz
or loss — CREE-
listed securities in EBLHHES
Hong Kong 43,587 — — 43,587
Total recurring fair value EZ# 2 A E
measurements FTEHALE 43,587 634,119 — 677,706
(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (b) R=E—AREARAA=T+HZAEE
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value AGEBEEERAAEFNEMAR
measurements at 30 June 2016: BT R A 25
The Group’s management is responsible for the fair AEBEEEESETUBRSEME
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for EEERBBAAETGE  BESE
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value ERANEFE  EEEBEHEOES
measurements. The management reports directly to the EREZZONEE - EEEHE
Board of Directors for these fair value measurements. EEEFELTRGEBERERM
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held Ko

between the management and the Board of Directors at
least twice a year.

Level 2 fair value measurements BE-MARETE

Fair value Fair value

DRE DRE

Description Valuation technique 2016 2015

it R R M —E-XE —E-0F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR FTHET

Biological assets Market approach Market price per m? 547,224 634,119
EMEE mEE BYHKME
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7. REVENUE 7. W=
The Group’s revenue which represents sales of goods to AEELEREHEFHEEER  BRER
customers, fees from advisory service, loan interest income BEA  ERFERARKREWA - ;]
and dividend income are as follows: H]HT :
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTEx
Trading of motor vehicles BEERHE 9,679 —
Rental income HaWA 3,360 —
Green technology advisory fee income FEFMTEHERA — 2,700
Loan interest income BERFEWA 326 10
Dividend income R EUA — 23
13,365 2,733
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. pEPEHR
The Group has six reportable segments as follows: REEARET2HRDBAOT :
(i) Sales of plantation products (i) sHEEEEM
(i) Green technology advisory services (i) ARER iR R AR
(iii) Provision of financial services (i) RS RARTS
(iv) Trading and investment business (iv) BEERREXK
(v) Rental property (v) HHEMHE
(vi) Trading of motor vehicles (vi) EEARE
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business AEBZAZRIBAHRETEAERRER
units that offer different products and services. They are B2 RBEBEN - ARNEEBEFTETE
managed separately because each business requires different Rk MG HERERE  MOoHEERATE
technology and marketing strategies. H]DED e
Segment profits or losses do not include bank interest income, DEENRE BT EERITREUWA ~ &
finance costs and income tax credit. Segment assets do ERARMEBHER - »BEEFEREW
not include deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries. Segment BREARZERE  moaNEETEREE
liabilities do not include deferred tax liabilities. ERIEEE -
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities:

78

Green
technology
advisory
services
BEHN
ERRE
HK§'000
Tin

Sales of
plantation
products

B
EfEn
HK$'000

i

8.

Provision of
financial
services

HKS000
TEn

TEEN(E

B 2| DWW ~ 1858
BRNERNT :

Trading and
investment
business

8R
RERE
HK§'000

Tin

Rental
income

ELUON
HKS'000
Tin

Trading of
motor
vehicles

REE
HKS'000
Tin

CEERE

Total

i
HKS'000
i

Year ended 30 June 2016 BB 2-7ERf=1H
ILEE

Revenue fom extemal customers RENRRE Sl - = 326 = 3,360 9,479 13365
Seqment loss, comprisig; AEEEE: (131) (54928) 188 (34,188) (1,364 (3425) (94449)
Lossarisngfrom changesin -~ £4EEAAESE

fairvalueless cosistoselof ~ HERAEL 2B

biological assefs - (45,603) - - - - (45,603)
Depreciation and amorisation ~ 1TE R 0 (4,99) - (600) (4.490) (176) (10,266)
Proceeds fom disposal ofisled & A58

securiies - - - 21,947 - - 1,947
Costsof disposalof HE FRENA

listed securtes - - - (55,197) - - (55,197)
Net unrealised gains on EERSNRER

trading securies i - - - 8 - = 8
At 30 June 2016 H-E-~EARZTH
Segment assels HH8E 6 57,635 13072 14014 137,280 33512 835,58
Seqment libiies ik 480 1182 (] 47 41 1075 810
Year ended 30 June 2015 BE-E-REAR=TALER
Revenue fiom extemal customers - REAREPHINE 2700 - 1 B - - 213
Segrent prflfoss compisng. AR/ (ER)aEE 209 1904%) K 0778 - - (60503)
Lossarishgfrom changesin ~ £42EAAESE

fairvalie less costsfoselof  HHERAELZEE

biological assels - (11172) - - - - (11472)
Depreciation and amortisafion ~~ fTER 4 (5,261) - (600) - - (5871)
Proceeds fom disposal ofisled & A58

securities - - - 2,106 - - 2,106
Costs of disposal of HE LS HHA

st secures - - - (1818) - - (1818)
Net unvealised losses on EERANREE

trading securites EETE - - - %95 - - 26,925
At 30 June 2015 W-E3-FEAAZTH
Segment assels AEE 142 761,641 500 46,558 - - 813,351
Segment liabiltes A5EE 4,84 120 - 467 - - 655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities:

D RER (A

AR 2/ MHKE - B - BERE
BEEHERNT -

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Revenue: g
Total revenue of reportable segments ] 23 o HpAEUE 13,365 2,733
Loss: &
Total loss of reportable segments AI2Wm o EAEE (94,448) (60,503)
Other profit or loss: Hihgs -
Finance costs BE R AR (661) (6)
Income tax credit SRR R 16,704 15,700
Corporate and unallocated loss TERKDEEER (28,481) (24,092)
Consolidated loss for the year FEHFREEHR (106,886) (68,901)
Assets: BE
Total assets of reportable segments T 2HRDIPEERE 855,582 813,351
Secured deposit paid for acquisition of FhUREE T E A |
subsidiaries [BEDEi R E & — 42,000
Refundable secured deposit REFEERS 70,000 70,000
Corporate and unallocated assets TERRIMEE 73,343 60,445
Consolidated total assets REHREE 998,925 985,796
Liabilities: 8E:
Total liabilities of reportable segments 2Ry HEEE 8,110 6,551
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 164,324 193,745
Corporate and unallocated liabilities TERARIEERS 9,124 9,466
Consolidated total liabilities memas 181,558 209,762

SE-AFER PEHRREREEARAE
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0!
o
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. DEBER(E
Geographical information: HWEER :
Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FREBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—REF —E—REF —EB—RF —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FiExT
Mainland China FE A i — — 657,235 757,210
Hong Kong BE 13,365 33 141,188 43,799
Macau and others TP K ElAth = 2,700 11 17
13,365 2,733 798,434 801,026
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based RESHEERE WS JIRIEEF AT
on the locations of the customers. HWETE o
Revenue from major customers: REFERFHRE :
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET F&xT
Green technology advisory fees FERNERE
Customer A EFA — 2,700
Trading of motor vehicles BEEARE
Customer B ZFB 2,023 —
Customer C ZFEC 2,000 —
Customer D =ZFED 1,891 —
Customer E =FE 1,782 —
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfkA
2016 2015
—B—RF —ZET-ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FBT
Consultancy fee income BHABEWA — 63
Sub-letting income AHEBA — 704
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment BETE — 19
Others Hi 3 1,428
3 2,214
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10. FINANCE COSTS

10. BE R A

2016
—E-ARF

2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
TERT

HK$’000
FET

Finance lease interests MEREFE — 6
Interests on promissory note AEEEFE 661 —
661 6

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

BNERRiIR — BBRIGEH

1. FiEBiRR

2016 2015
—E-RF
HK$'000

T

HK$’000
FH

Provision for the year FERE 373 467

Current tax — the PRC Enterprise Income Tax ENHi%{18 — hEI2EFFESH
Provision for the year FERE = —
Deferred tax (hote 27) IEIERIE (H1aF27) (17,077) (16,167)
(16,704) (15,700)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year
ended 30 June 2016. Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the
PRC is 25% (2015: 25%).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation
and practices in respect thereof.

ERNEHORBE-Z - EXA=1
HIEFE 2 At ERBER 216.5% (==
—FHE 1 16.5%)sHREHE - RIEPEILE
Fr8®ik ([ EBRE ) R EEMREH
EBRRAG 0 AR ZHREMB LA TR=E
B25%(ZF—FHF : 25%) °

Hiih & 2 R BUEFIBIE C R A R EE

EMERR2BITRE  RABBERITE
Pl - RERERTE -
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11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

11.

The reconciliation between the income tax and the product of
profit before tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax

rate is as follows:

Fr8BmR (&)
PS8t B BR 0 A g 7 3k BA AR B R 3 PR 1S K
R ZEZHIRFIEMNT -

2016
S

2015
—E-hF
HK$’000
FET

HK$’000
FERx

Loss before tax MRELATE 18 (123,590) (84,601)
Tax calculated at applicable PRC RE AP B ZE25%

tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) (ZE—HF : 25%)

HEZBIE (30,898) (21,150)

Tax effect of expenses that are not AR 2 B

deductible 7 1,914 5,463
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BEARTIRA 2B E (43) (204)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries =~ MiBA TR ER— 2 & 6,176 191
Tax effect of fax losses not recognised RERHEEE 2 HETE 6,147 —
Income tax credit FriSFiR %R (16,704) (15,700)

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. EEEE

82

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

the following:

Amortisation of intangible asset

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation

Staff costs (including Directors’
remuneration):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances

— retirement benefits scheme contributions

— equity settled share-based payments

Loss/(gain) on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Auditor’s remuneration

Operating lease charges on land and
buildings

AEBZEFEFBEHNRGTAUTE
15 -

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T8t
mIEERBE 4,996 5,267
BEEFERAK 8,220 —
wE 6,310 859
ETRAN(BEESEHS) :
— & > BAKER 8,123 5,460
— BIREFRIFTEIHX 312 103
— UREEE R D AER
:ORREN 6,923 —
15,358 5,563
HEME  BMERREESRE
(&) 822 (19)
ZEET N & 780 720
TR BRFREREER
5,122 4,432
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows:

13. EERTHRARME

(a) EREEMESIBMMT :

2016
It
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
RIER
He HEREH MiERA IR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TAT TiEx TR TET
Chief executive TREE
Mr.Yeung ChiHang  BEERE 1,111 — 128 46 1,285
Executive directors ~ H{TEZ
Mr. Leung Kwong Choi ~ REZ %4 241 - 15 77 333
Mr. Wong Po Keung EREEE 300 660 80 18 1,058
Mr. Chung Siu Wah EOELE 821 - 88 36 945
Mr.ChenYuyang (a)  BRFiEL%(a) 437 152 60 = 649
Mr. Chik To Pan (b) REREE (D) 240 — 3 9 252
Independent non- BUKHTES
executive directors
Mr. Wong Kwai Sang ~ ZEE4 %4 120 — 10 — 130
Mr. Ong Chi King BB i 120 — 10 — 130
Mr. Heung Chee Hang, E&H18%4E
Eric 120 — 10 — 130
Total for 2016 “E-RESG 3,510 812 404 186 4912

(a) resigned on 15 April 2016.

(b) appointed on 15 April 2016.

(a) R=Z—A"FWA+EBABHE -
(b) R=Z—ARFNA+HEBAEZRE-
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERTHARME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows: (a) BEEEMEIRWT : (&)
(Continued)
2015
“E-1f

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total

BINER
e HEREH A HE- e @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEx TER TaEx TAL TEL

Chief executive THEASR
Mr.Yeung ChiHang  #HBEE%E 456 - 76 = 532
Executive directors ~ H{TES

Mr. Leung Kwong Choi  2EZ %4 180 - 30 - 210
Mr. Kwok Wai, Wilfred ~ SPR %4 98 - - — 98
Mr. Wong Po Keung EREEE 300 558 160 18 1,036
Mr. Chung Siu Wah BOELE 402 - 76 = 478
Mr. Chen Yuyang REHEE 187 - 68 — 255

Independent non- BUFRTES
executive directors

Mr.Wong Kwai Sang ~ E=E4£%4E 120 - 10 = 130

Mr. Chan Ka Yin RZE R 65 - — — 65

Mr. Ong Chi King TFHESE 120 - 10 — 130

Mr. Heung Chee Hang, &&1E%4E

Eric 55 - 10 — 65

Total for 2015 “E-REMH 1,983 558 440 18 2,999
There was no arrangement under which a director and FREERITHEBMEST LHER
chief executive arrived or agreed to waive any emoluments BEEREEMHEHZHE

during the year.
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included four (2015: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
above note (a). The emoluments of the remaining one
(2015: two) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries, allowances and

13. EERTHAREME (&)

(b) EEEEFAL
FR - AEBLEESHFATEREN
B(ZZ—HF  =ZR)EE - Hife
2R EXMF@) BT —R(=F
—RE  MB)ATZHMESFIENT :

2016
—EB-AF

2015
—E-—TIF
HK$'000
FHEIT

HK$’000
FERT

BEXge 2K

benefits-in-kind B 390 816
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  E{RIEFIET &)tk — 32
390 848

The emoluments fell within the following band: BB AT AR :

Nil — HK$1,000,000

Z£%1,000,00058 7T 1 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$106,609,000
(2015: HK$68,901,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,395,685,877 (2015: 1,096,342,451 as
adjusted to reflect the impact of open offer on 3 September
2015 as set out in note 28(i)).

Diluted loss per share
The effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for
the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015.

R AEEREQETNESHIES
FALTZNAME  ERMALEER
RIAZR SR 2 SRR A E o

14. BREBR

BREXREE

RKPNAEEANELEERERNEE 25
HHEABARNABEEAEMNERERS
# 106,609,000 B T (= & — H F
68,901,00058 v ) & Z @ R 0 ¥ 15
20 1,395,685,877 B ( = & — & F
1,096,342,451 % » & FEE LU BRI EE28(i)

FER-"Z-AFNA=RAHBENY
#®) -

BREEER

HE-B—AFR-B-—HEFAA=1H
L EEOFEEEEBRY SRR -
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15. DIVIDENDS 15. B2

The directors have not recommended or declared the payment
of any dividend in respect of the years ended 30 June 2016

and 2015.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

EZUTERIEMRBE_ZT—AER
—E-HAFAA=THLEFERGEAR

B o
=\

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment Cruiser vehicle Total
FEN
HERE EERRE il i AE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR T TR
Cost BA
At 1 July 2014 RZE-mFE+A—H 414 3,450 — 236 4,100
Additions hE 48 418 — — 466
Disposals HE — - — (236) (236)
At30June2015and R=ZE-REFEAA=TH
1 July 2015 RZE-RFtA—-H 462 3,868 — — 4,330
Additions hE 3,035 556 3,000 — 6,591
Disposals e (457) (851) — — (1,308)
At 30 June 2016 RIE-RFERB=TH 3,040 3,573 3,000 — 9,613
Accumulated REHE
depreciation
At 1 July 2014 RZE-mFE+A—H 48 1,607 — 195 1,850
Charge forthe year ~ WERTK 93 766 — — 859
Disposals HE — — — (195) (195)
At30June2015and RZE-EFXA=T+H
1 July 2015 RZE-RFtA-H 141 2,373 — — 2,514
Charge for the year RERMBK 258 737 825 — 1,820
Disposals HE (185) (301) - — (486)
At 30 June 2016 RZE-REXA=TH 214 2,809 825 — 3,848
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2016 RIE-RERA=TH 2,826 764 2,175 — 5,765
At 30 June 2015 RIE-HFAA=1H 321 1,495 — — 1,816
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY#E
Car-parking
spaces
By
HK$’000
FE&xT
Cost A
At 1 July 2014, 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZE—NFELtE—H - ZZ—&1F
ANB=THARZE-HEFEHA—H —
Additions NE 138,837
At 30 June 2016 RZE—REXA=1H 138,837
Accumulated depreciation Z2itiE
At 1 July 2014, 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 R-ZE—MNFELtH—H - ZF—51F
ANE=tBER=ZZ-HEFtHA—H —
Charge for the year RERKR 4,490
At 30 June 2016 R=ZZB—XRERA=1+H 4,490
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2016 R-ZE—XREXB=1H 134,347
At 30 June 2015 R-E—REAB=1H —
As at 30 June 2016, in the opinions of the directors of the RZE—RFAA=1H RRATEER
Company, the fair value of the investment properties is B REWEZD REA174,800,00078
HK$174,800,000. The fair value is based on the market value T ZARBEIIREBEAARBFESE ZH2
approach under fair value measurement level 2. TEETE °
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&

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

88

18. £ EE

Standing timbers

REREARA

HK$°000
TR

At 1 July 2014 R-ZE-NFtA—H 710,248
Loss arising from changes in fair value EMEEAABEEEBREERK
less costs to sell of biological assets FEEZEE (77,172)
Exchange differences EHEL 1,043
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZE-RFAA=1THE
—2-RFtA—H 634,119
Loss arising from changes in fair value EMEEAABEEREBREERK
less costs to sell of biological assets FEEZER (45,603)
Exchange differences EHESE (41,292)
At 30 June 2016 R-E—RFARA=1+H 547,224

The Group’s biological assets represent standing timbers on
plantation land of approximately 30,000 Chinese Mu with a
lease term of 30 years, expiring in 2038. The standing timbers
comprise mostly poplar trees (accounting over 99% of the total
standing timbers), mixed with a very small portion of other
species of deciduous trees such as elm, willow. During the
year, the Group did not harvest or sell any standing timbers
(2015: Nil).

The Group’s standing timbers as at 30 June 2016 were
independently valued by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma”)
which comprises a group of independent professional valuers
with experience and expertise in relation to biological assets
valuation. Their team consists of professional valuers and
agricultural experts who work together in a wide array of
biological assets to ensure the reliability and fairness of their
valuation results. Accordingly, the directors are of the view
that Roma is independent and competent to determine the fair
value of the Group’s biological assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZ=Z—XEAA=+THLFE

Roma has adopted a market approach for the valuation of
standing timbers. The method uses the present market value in
terms of price per unit cubic meter of round logs and the total
merchantable volume of timbers on the plantation land as at 30
June 2016 as a basis for calculating the fair value less costs to
sell of the biological assets. Roma has adopted the measured
merchantable volume of standing timbers as indicated by the
forest manager of the Group and also verified the market price
per cubic meter of logs by referencing to the market price lists,
after taking into account of local timber manufacturing factories
as well. The principal assumptions adopted are as follows:

1. no material changes in the existing political, legal,
technological, fiscal, economic conditions, climate and any
other natural condition;

2. poplar trees can grow to certain size and can be legally cut
in 8 years and in 5 years with organic fertilisers added; and

3. the movements of the price of the timber, the setup fee and
maintenance fee for tree plantation will move in line with
the price index of forestry product in China.

The valuation techniques used in the determination of fair
values as well as the key inputs used in the valuation models
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nature risk

The Group’s revenue depends significantly on the ability to
harvest wood at adequate levels. The ability to harvest on the
plantation land and the growth of the trees on the plantation
land may be affected by unfavorable local weather conditions
and natural disasters. Weather conditions such as earthquakes,
rainfall, underground water, fire, disease, insect infestation and
pests are examples of such events. The occurrence of severe
weather conditions or natural disasters may diminish the supply
of trees available for harvesting on the plantation land, or
otherwise impede the Group’s logging operations or the growth
of the trees on the plantation land, which in turn may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s ability to produce the
products in sufficient quantities and a timely manner.
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B & E

Operating rights

ReE
HK$’000
FET
(Note a)
(Btzta)
Cost R
At 1 July 2014 R-ZE—MNOELA—H 157,969
Exchange differences ERELE (271)
At 30 June 2015 and R=-Z—ARFXA=+H
1 July 2015 rZE-FHFLtH—H 157,698
Exchange differences EHEL (10,470)
At 30 June 2016 R-ZZB—XRFEXB=+H 147,228
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt BHERRE
At 1 July 2014 RZTE—NOELA—H 28,548
Amortisation for the year FREHE 5,267
Exchange differences EHEXE 792
At 30 June 2015 and R-Z—RF<A=1+H
1 July 2015 ;rZE-FHFLH—H 34,607
Amortisation for the year FREH 4,996
Exchange differences EHERE (2,386)
At 30 June 2016 R-ZE—XREXA=TH 37,217
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2016 R-ZE—XREXA=TH 110,011
At 30 June 2015 RIE-RFARA=1H 123,091

EEEEANTMBARGERRELEER
THEFNNERNAR - RARREBEE-ZT
EAEANA=ZTELEEEREHRBAT o
B EEFERAESENTERERA30E
AEE M TAFERABERAE2F(ZE
—HF :235F) ¢

REB-AREAAZTHAZKERBHES
BIBETBIfHE - AREERE 2 TWE
THRBHAREE - #OEERERSE

The operating right relates to the favorable aspect of the right
to use and operate the plantation land of a subsidiary of the
Company. The subsidiary was acquired in the year ended 30
June 2009. The intangible asset is amortised using straight-line
method over the useful life of 30 years and the remaining useful
life is 22 years (2015: 23 years).

The operating right as at 30 June 2016 was independently
valued by Roma. No impairment loss was recognized as the
recoverable amount of the operating right exceeds its carrying
value.

920 CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁ#ﬁ#ﬁ §I‘1§ %.I For the year ended 30 June 2016 BZE=F—ARFAA=1THILFE

20. GOODWILL 20. BE

HK$'000
T

Cost R

Beginning of reporting period HEHY) —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) E4 KRB B Q[ (417F30) 1,087
The end of the reporting period WERR 1,087

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to the cash
generating unit of trading of motor vehicles.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Trading of motor vehicles cash-generating unit

The amount of goodwill is allocated to the trading of motor
vehicles cash generating unit. Goodwill is tested for impairment
for this cash-generating units by the management by estimating
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units based on
value in use calculations.

As at 30 June 2016, the value in use calculation uses cash
flow projections based on the financial budgets approved by
the management covering a 5 year period. Key assumptions
used by the management in the value in use calculation of the
cash generating unit include budgeted revenue and gross profit
margin. The pre-tax discount rate used for estimating the value
in use is 15%.

The assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations in respect of the
motor vehicles trading in the Hong Kong and the PRC.

The management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

No impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 30
June 2016 as a result of the impairment test.

21. INVENTORIES

Finished goods SR

SRS & o0 B VT B KBRS 5 LS
BN EREBAFORSEEEL(R
SEEE)) - HEREBECHREAS
AERSEERN -

AERE R
JTEEEREELEN

BESHIBETEEEREELEMN -
ERERZREEEEMETHERER
ANTERREBEEREENEGTRESE
AR AT E S

RZB—AREAA=+H FHREEFE
ERUEERMELFHBcMBEERES
RENFEERERN - EEERESELE
UfEAEESEREANERRREER
Blam Rk ERNR o AT EAEENBA
REH15% °

BRORBEEEEBRTEEEENA
ARBAREEERMNERE

EEEANYTANEEHLARBHETE
e EME AL AT REE D o

BE-Z-—RFRA=THLEE  #E
HRERHER R ERE

21. 78

2016 2015
—E—RE

—E-—TIF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHEIT
8,576 —
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

92

22. R AR R HL A R YR IR

2016
—E-RE

2015
—Z-HF
HK$'000
TEx

HK$°000
FHERT

Trade receivables FEURBR X 4,873 —

Prepayments, deposits and other FBARE - ReEkHM
receivables FEWRE 17,178 8,551
22,051 8,551

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 180 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, was as follows:

AEBEEUFEESAEEFT LIRS K
Ao FEH-—BRNMNI0E180KRFE - 7
UEFHIBEFEELR -HEFBEARE
BIASSR o AR E 7 RE H 1 R EE WK
TRERRIRER - ESTHRMEHELS -

FE AR IR $2 3% 3R B 2 AR 0 47 (2 H1BRER
BT :

2016 2015

—EB—RE —E—FF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FBT

0-90 days 0Z290K 177 —
91-180 days 91£180K 4,696 —
4,873 —

All trade receivables were neither past due nor impaired.
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE

FEWE 5K

Loans receivable

23. BIWER

2016 2015
—E-ARF

—E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
13,072 5,010

Loans receivable as at 30 June 2016 included (i) short-term
personal loans granted to independent individuals which are
unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
within three months; and (ii) a corporate short-term loan
granted to an independent company which is secured over its
own shares, bearing interest at 12% per annum and repayable
with three months term.

The ageing analysis of these loan and loan interest receivables

REZB-AR"EXNAZ+HNEKRERERE
(WBRTFTELBEANERLAER  BEK
- RERES% A ERER=ZEEAE
B R(NRTBIARNDAERER
Uz R A S RGBSR - BEFIE12%
FFERER=EAREE -

ZERBER K ERF S RRER D 4 5

is as follows: o
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT FiExT
0-90 days 0Z90H 7,875 5,010
More than 90 days H#iE90H 5,197 —
13,072 5,010

As at 30 June 2016, loans receivable were neither past due
nor impaired, except for a short-term personal loan with a total
outstanding amount of HK$5,197,000 which was overdue as at
30 June 2016 but has been fully settled subsequent to the end
of the reporting period.

REZZ2—ARFAA=ZTH  BRETKE
MR ARBE - E—EEREAERERI
HRZZE-REAA=ZTBHNREEEHE
735,197,000/ T - BEE RIMEBREEH
A
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity securities, at fair value

listed in Hong Kong REELS

BAES  BARE

24 ZRERBRAAEFEZERMEE

2016 2015
—E-RE

—Z-8F
HK$'000
TR

HK$°000
TR

5,433 43,587

At 30 June 2016, the fair value of the listed equity securities,
amounting to approximately HK$5,433,000 (2015:
HK$43,587,000), was determined based on the quoted market
bid prices of the corresponding listed equity securities.

25. REFUNDABLE SECURED DEPOSIT

94

RZB—AREXNA=1H  EHRAE
HZAREBEK5433,0008 T (= —H
F © 43,587,000/ 7T) » LLIIARIEAEIE B
BAZBSZNTRHEEBABERE °

25. IREBECEAERE

HK$°000
TR

At the beginning and the end of
reporting period

HmEBDRHR

70,000

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement and
a supplemental agreement on 27 November 2013 and 16
December 2013, respectively, with an independent third party
in relation to the acquisition of 100% equity interest of a target
company and its subsidiaries which are mainly engaged in
hotel operations in the PRC (the “Proposed Acquisition”). On
23 December 2013, an amount of HK$150,000,000 was paid
by the Group as refundable deposit. The refundable deposit is
charged over the entire issued share capital of a Hong Kong
subsidiary of the target company and was classified as secured
deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries as at 30 June 2014.

According to the Company’s announcement dated 28 October
2014, the Group and the vendor entered into a termination
agreement to terminate the Proposed Acquisition because
certain conditions precedent of the Proposed Acquisition have
not been satisfied. Pursuant to the termination agreement,
the Group and the vendor agreed that the refundable deposit
shall be refunded to the Group by three installments including
HK$60,000,000; HK$45,000,000; and HK$45,000,000,
repayable on 10 November 2014, 27 January 2015 and 27
April 2015, respectively. The first installment of HK$60,000,000
was received by the Company on 7 November 2014.
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25. REFUNDABLE SECURED DEPOSIT (CONTINUED)

According to the Company’s announcement dated 18 June
2015, the Group and the vendor entered into a supplemental
termination agreement to amend certain terms of the
termination agreement relating to the refund of the remaining
refundable deposit. Pursuant to the supplemental termination
agreement, the Group and the vendor have agreed that the
remaining refundable deposit shall be refunded to the Group by
two installments including HK$20,000,000 and HK$70,000,000,
together with respective interest as calculated at 5% per
annum, repayable on 18 June 2015 and 19 November 2015,
respectively. The second installment of HK$20,000,000
together with interest was received by the Company on 18
June 2015. The last installment together with the interest was
overdue as at 30 June 2016.

The directors of the Company were still in negotiation
with the vendor over the repayment arrangement of the
subject outstanding amount. An impairment review over the
recoverability of the subject amount was also carried out by the
Company. Since the recoverable amount of the secured assets
as estimated by the directors of the Company, after taking
into account of the valuation as performed by an independent
professional valuer and the current property market in the
PRC, exceeded the carrying amount of the subject outstanding
amount, the directors are in the opinion that it was appropriate
not to make any impairment provision in respect to the subject
amount as at 30 June 2016.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables FE{SERRX

Other payables and accruals

26.

Htb B R R ROR

25 iRECEKRES (HF)

REAATAPA-ZE—HFASA+N\A
2o REBEEFFL — AT
% UMBERTUEREERSEIAR LR
BZBETHRR REBAERLEDHE &
EEHEELHE  RTAREERS(BE
20,000,000 & Jt & 70,000,000 /& 7t & [F
BEFZE5%TE2FNEEBRNE) SO ™
HREFAEE 2R ZE—HF~A
+NBER=ZZE—HRFE+—B+NBES-
AATRECR=ZBE—HENATN\BEESE
—HAFXIE20,000,000/8 TTEF R E - HiE
—HZEERMNER=E—-AEANA=T
Hi@HE -

AARESNHEREBESERESIREES
BNERZH - AQAFEHET WD
BEEETREEZN HRNEEFEEN
AW ESRE(BARABESMET - EPEst
R BB EEGEMPAEGERTEBRT
YIS B HiE S A EE SRV IRE(E -
ESAR  WEBR-F-—R"FAA=1
AziES LB RIEIREREIESE -

PR BRI LA B SR

2016
—B-RF

HK$’000
TER
144

9,114 8,128

9,258 8,128

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of
receipt of goods, is as follows:

0-90 days 0Z90H

FEARRZERE R REROMAT ¢

2016
—B-RF

2015
—ZE-EHF
HK$°000
TExT

HK$°000
FHET

144
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. IEEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised THAAEBEDEIA 2 ETELEHIBEE -
by the Group.

Financial
assets at Fair value
fair value adjustment on
through biological Operating

profit or loss assets right Total

BARE

HTABHEZ EYEEZ
SREE ARERE g ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEr TEx TAT
At 1 July 2014 RZE-DNF+A—H — 178,808 32,370 211,178
Credit to profit or loss ERREBHETTA

for the year (note 11) (hiz11) 4,443 (19,293) (1,317) (16,167)
Exchange differences EHELE — (986) (280) (1,266)
At 30 June 2015 and RZE-1F

1 July 2015 RA=ZTHR

“EZ-RF+A-H 4,443 158,529 30,773 193,745
Charged/(credit) to ERRERNR/

profit or loss for the year (FEA) (Hrat11)

(note 11) (4,428) (11,400) (1,249) (17,077)
Exchange differences ERELE — (10,323) (2,021) (12,344)
At 30 June 2016 RZB-REXA=1H 15 136,806 27,503 164,324

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RBEHR  AEERDABREEED
tax losses of approximately HK$61,040,000 (2015: 61,040,000/ T (= ZE—HF : 23,786,000
HK$23,786,000) available for offset against future profits. No 77T ) AT SE R ARG R o HRAEIETERHR
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above FORAIIR - H R - 3l R B A IE S
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit BRRAELEHEEE

streams.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. lg 7

2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RHE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Authorised: SERE -
15,000,000,000 ordinary shares of =P%0.0278TZ
HK$0.02 each 15,000,000,000 8% & 3@ A% 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRARE
1,697,138,114 (2015: 942,854,508) FIR0.02/BTZ
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each 1,697,138,114%
(Z=B—H%F:
942,854,5080% ) B A% 33,943 18,857

A summary of the movements in the issued share capital of the
Company is as follows:

AATFEBITRAZEZBHRNT :

Number of
shares

KRB E

At 1 July 2015 R-ZZE—RE+tHA—H 942,854,508 18,857

Open offer (note (i) NEABE (M) 471,427,254 9,429

Placement of new shares (note (i) BREH IR AD (K72 (i) 282,856,352 5,657

At 30 June 2016 R-E—REXRA=1H 1,697,138,114 33,943
Notes: Vo=

(i) Open offer

On 3 September 2015, a total of 471,427,254 ordinary shares of
HK$0.02 each was allotted and issued to the qualifying shareholders
of the Company on the basis of one offer share for every two shares
held on 12 August 2015, at a subscription price of HK$0.29 per
share. Upon completion of the open offer, the premium on the issue
of shares amounting to approximately HK$123,244,000, net of share
issue expenses of approximately HK$4,041,000, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

Placement of new shares

On 26 April 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent in respect of the placement of 282,856,352
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.165 per share. The placement was completed on 13 May 2016
and the premium on the issue of shares amounting to approximately
HK$39,954,000, net of share issue expenses of approximately
HK$1,060,000, was credited to the Company’s share premium
account.

(ii)

(i) DFREE

RZZB—RFNA=H » 471,427,254}
ERO.02BT 2 EBERERBERETTIAAT
ZEERRR  EEAN-Z-—RFNA+=
HEREMBRRNER —REERND  RBEE
BER029%B T - AFMBETHE  BRHBIT
2w fBEH#123,244,00058 7T » A& HIBRER 173
1TBX#94,041,00058 T * RARA B Z R D%
EIRASR ©

BEH K5

RZZB-—AR"EMA=+AAH  AATEFRER
IV —ERERHE  AREEBRBEIRE
HLER0.165% T 2 EREES R EE0.02
BT 2 282,856,352 R LB c MENR=F
—AEERT=H%H BOBRTRES
#739,954,00058 7 - LMBRBMHBTRAZY
1,060,000/ 7T » RAA T ZBRIDEEERALR ©

(ii)
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98

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of debts or selling assets to maintain sufficiency of
working capital.

Equity-settled share option scheme

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved on 11 November 2015 (“Share Option Scheme”)
(the 10% general limit under the said share option scheme
has been refreshed pursuant to a resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 11 November 2015). The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Group with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
and/or providing benefits to the participant and to provide the
participant with the opportunity to acquire a personal stake in
the Group and to build common objectives of the Group and
the participant for the betterment of business and profitability of
the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

The Board of Directors may, at their discretion, invite any
participant to take up options. An option is deemed to have
been granted and accepted by the grantee upon his or her
signing the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option
and paying HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme will be the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares in the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date (which date
must be a business day), (ii) a price being the average of the
closing prices of the shares in the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. IR AEBNAIRE)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in the Company in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme. An option may be
exercised during a period to be determined by the directors
in its absolute discretion and in any such period shall not be
longer than 10 years from the date upon which the option is
granted.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue of the Company. Any further
grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such participant
and his or her associates abstaining from voting. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date upon which the Option is deemed to be granted
and accepted.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

Exercise price
Participants Date of grant  Exercise period per share

RHAH T BRTEE

LARR A5 S 2 B IR rE 5t 8 ()

RIBRE IR B R A D AR H MRS AR
FTEIRH 2 2 ABIR T A BT
ARBRDAY  SHFEBBRIE
BREFHEEBARALACHITROBEH
10% ° BREATNES2EHITEE 2B
BATE  HEEABERT - AEHES
BERBRER L RHR10F -

RIBBREE - A —BSEEEEM
T EAMERETEERBREMRT
FHRT2ROBARSERE - T5EB
ARBCBITROBHN1% - E— SR HE
B1%RE 2 BIRE - AERRNRBRRAS
o MEZESRERABBEATEL
BRE - BRESTENBRERESCRYE
KRz BMET10FBEREN

Options grant to directors

BYEEvBRE 22/412016 22/412016 — 21/4/2026 0.2064
Options grant to chief

executive officer
RPTHEH 2 BRE 22/42016 22/412016 - 21/4/2026 0.2064
Options grant to a employee
RYEEZERE 22/4/2016 22412016 — 21/4/2026 0.2064

Weighted average exercise
price (HKS$)
EFHTRE(ERT)

BREFMAEZFBOT ¢
Number of share options
BREHE
Balance asat  Granted during Balance as at
1 July 2015 the year 30 June 2016
RZZ-RF REB-—AF
tB-Rz&8 ERRE RSAStHRZER
— 42,428 42,428
— 14,143 14,143
— 14,143 14,143
— 70,714 70,714
— 0.2064 0.2064
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. IR AEBNAIRE)

LA R4 B 2 BB IR R =t B (A7)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial pricing

model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

SED BT R B AR
§ o BT TR AMBNT ;

2016
—E-RF

Stock price BRE 0.198
Strike price THEE 0.2064
Historical volatility [ SRR 96.86%
Constructual life FEEFH 10
Risk free rate 12 3 B 1) 22 1.311%
Dividend yield BEWEE 0%
Early exercise multiple RETHEEH 2.8
Exit rate per annum FRARE 22.92%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
10 years. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on the Group’s best estimate, for the effects
of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

30.

On 4 August 2015, the Group acquired 90% of the issued
share capital of BAC HK Limited for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$1,000,000. BAC HK Limited was engaged
in trading of motor vehicles during the year. In the opinions of
the directors, the newly acquired subsidiary would broaden the
principal activities of the Group and is expected to be one of

the major revenue stream in the future.
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oW
30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 30. Wi —REMIEB AT (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BAC HUREE B BiFTUIREEBAC HK Limited 2 ] 35
HK Limited acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: REEREBZAABENT :
BAC HK
Limited Others
BAC HK
Limited Hity
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Net liabilities acquired: EWEEETE
Other payable HAth (I 7RIE (95) — (95)
Non-controlling interest IR R 9 — 9
(86) — (86)
Goodwill e 1,086 1 1,087
1,000 1 1,001
Satisfied by: AR
Cash RBE 1,000 1 1,001
Net cash outflow arising on WREE2HESR
acquisition: R
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 1,000 1 1,001
There is no significant changes to the Group’s revenue and HEBR-—ZE-AFLA—ARTH » A&
loss for the year if the acquisition had been completed on 1 Bz RSB EE REBE o
July 2015.
The gooduwill arising on the acquisition of BAC HK Limited is WIEBAC HK LimitedZ 4% 2 & TR A TE
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution of BERPETE D HEE 2 AHBAED
the motor vehicles in Hong Kong and PRC markets and the REEHEENRREE RN
anticipated future operating synergies from the combination.
31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 3. HEMB LT
On 18 March 2016, the Group disposed 100% of the issued REZZB-—AF=ZA1TN\A  AEEHER
share capital of Bright Key Holdings Limited for a cash BEESROFAZHEHTRA  REN
consideration of approximately HK$1,017,000. {8#91,017,0005&8 7T °

HK$’000
T

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: RHERHCEEFENT :

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JENTE - e R HAmERRE 1,017
Bank and cash balances IRITRIBEER 12
Net assets disposed of SEHEEEFE 1,028
Total consideration - satisfied by cash HRE-REXS (1,017)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEBLBEE 12
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFREEZRERATEE
Cash consideration received BUYERERE 1,017
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSRERREER (12)
1,005
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. XR B ZMBRRR K HE
COMPANY AND RESERVES
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATZHBARRE
2015
—E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 2RE 15,730 15,720
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE  BEREM
other receivables FEUWERIE 655 167
Due from subsidiaries FEURHT B A R FRIE 690,128 677,942
Bank balances R1TEERR 38,131 37
728,914 678,146
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEFBRF R ELAth FEI FIE 6,648 6,784
Due to subsidiaries FEASHI B A BIFIE 13,843 13,848
20,491 20,632
Net current assets REBEEFEE 708,423 657,514
Net assets EEFE 724,153 673,234
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital AR 33,943 18,857
Reserves s 690,210 654,377
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 724,153 673,234
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserves of the Company

Share
premium

B A ER
HK$'000
TET

32. XA BB MRR KRR FHEE)

(b) AT

Share-based
compensation
reserve

Accumulated
losses

RETER
HK$'000
TR

At 1 July 2014 R=-Z—&F
+A—-A 969,958 990 (152,499) 818,449
Loss for the year FEEE — — (164,072) (164,072)
Lapsed of share options BRI — (990) 990 —
At 30 June 2015 R-Z—1F
~A=1H 969,958 — (315,581) 654,377
At 1 July 2015 R-T-%F
+tA—-A 969,958 — (315,581) 654,377
Loss for the year FEEE — — (134,288) (134,288)
Open offer NERE 123,244 — — 123,244
Share option BERR e — 6,923 — 6,923
Placing of new shares RIE— R
under general mandate BRI A7 39,954 — — 39,954
At 30 June 2016 R-T—xE
AB=1H 1,133,156 6,923 (449,869) 690,210

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations of the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage
of the profit after tax, if any, to a statutory reserve.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant
regulations, the statutory reserve may be used to offset
the accumulated losses, if any, of the subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the capital injection made by the Company over the
nominal value of the registered capital of the PRC
subsidiaries.

(c) FNEBERE2MEERAE
(i) BG=ER

RIEFASHEARE  ARFAR
NEERZESADIKTARQF
BRI - HERTIR R REERE R D KR
EBRHMR  ARRSEANERE
EHBRMEREIMHER -

(i) EEWRE

RIBPEEEER - AEERF
B 5L 2 B B X B B A & T EE 4Bl
ZBE BT (0B BREEE
f#iE - EETHBEERAME S
TRHENBRT - EEREBAH
g?&ﬁ‘éﬁﬁ%@ﬂl%ﬁ&%ﬁ(ﬁﬂ

(iii) B E

BEXRRBEARADIAZETH
;ggg%@ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂKEEZ%ﬁ
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
(Continued)
(iv) Share-based compensation reserve
The share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to executive
directors and employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
(v) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at
30 June 2016 and 2015.

34. COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2016, the total future minimum lease payments

of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

32. RRB M BRR KRR i (E)

(c) AEMFEFR2MERREE)

(iv) RPN E 1#
IR0 BN & B IR C RIB R AR
BEUBROZNHRE(RESH
BMRMIEES) BRAR 2 BFTBER -
BRASEEHNTEERESR
HeBERESRGTHE 2 RTER
gz N fE -

(v) SMNERFE
HNERBECERESNERTK
WRFFEECFIEEREZER - &
B IRIB 4R & I IS SRR 4R
HeSHBRER -

33. WAEE

FEER-ZE-ARFR-Z2-RFKA
=T RAEBEMNEAHREE -

iE
REZZB-—ARFARA=TH  AEERET

A E R ERREN 2 REASHALE
WM

34.

2016
—E-RE

2015
—E-REF
HK$'000
THET

HK$°000
TR

Within one year —&FR 1,425 1,948
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FERELF(BREEEMT) 3,845 150
After five years EF#%E 595 675

5,865 2,773

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 2-5 years and rentals are fixed over the lease
terms and do not include contingent rentals.

In addition, one of the subsidiaries of the Company has
contracted to use and operate certain plantation land with an
initial lease term of thirty years with annual concession fee
payable of RMB30,000.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

Rental Expenses

HERMx

35. BEALRS

(a) BRRESMBHREEMIBPOBE 2

5 K SEERIN

 REBFT LU T EKRE

BALRS -

S i

HK$°000
FTiERr

2016 2015
—ZT-EHF
HK$’000
TR

1,661 —

Rental expenses were paid to the mother of Mr. Yeung
Chi Hang, Chairman and Chief Executive Director of the

Company.

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
and all of the highest paid employees, is disclosed in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

36. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Name of the subsidiary

HELRERE

Bright Delight Group Limited
R EEARANR

Bright Delight Asia-
Pacific Research Macao
Commercial Offshore Co.
Limited

BRI TR A RIS =
EERE)BRAE

Cai Jin Limited
BHERRAE]

CER Management Limited
FREBARATF

Place of
incorporation/
registration

AR,

it B

British Virgin
Islands

KBELES

Macao
!

British Virgin
Islands

KBELES

HK

Issued and paid-up/

registered capital
BRIRER/
&R

100 shares of US$1
each
SREE1ETH
1008 A 1D

MOP100,000
100,00012P9#

1 share of US$1
EE1ETH1RRD

HK$1
187

HERXEXNFARARERERITHR
REBEELEZFR -

(b)

FTEEEASHM

AEETEERASZHFMEEXM
FARAAESERZERSHMES
RIE - REEEMIEIRRMEE13WE -

36. A A FMBARFE

Percentage of
ownership interest

AR
Direct Indirect

E# EF:
100% —

— 100%

100% —

100% —

Principal activities

TEXK

Research and development
e

Research and development

Tl

Investment holding
REERR

Provision of management
services

RUCEERE
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36. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36. AR A BB (E)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid-up/ Percentage of
Name of the subsidiary registration registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
TR, ERITRBE
WEARERE Ealii- FrEEEDT FEXH
Direct Indirect
=k i
Gold Vantage Forestry HK HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding
Limited B 187 REER
SEMEBRAH
Grand Diamond Investment ~ HK HK$1 100% —  Provision of money lending
Limited N 18T services
EEREBRLH REEERY
International Richway Limited HK HK$1 100% — Investment holding
BN ERARAR EE) 18T REZR
Mega Choice Holdings British Virgin 1 share of US$1 100% —  Securities trading and
Limited Islands AE1IETNIRRS investments
HEELES EHEERRE
Prima Choice Limited British Virgin 1 share of US$1 100% — Investment holding
Islands [EIENETE REER
EBELES
Star Asset Holdings Limited ~ HK HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding
ENERERRATF ) 18T REER
Triple Harvest Holdings British Virgin 1 share of US$1 100% — Investment holding
Limited Islands EE1ETHRRG REZR
RERELES
Harvest Top Development HK HK10,000 — 100%  Property Investment
Limited BB 10,000/ T MERE
BABRBRLA
Wise Win Holdings Limited British Virgin 100 shares of US$1 — 70%  Investment holding
Islands SREEIETH REZR
RBELHS 10017
Wide World Inc. British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding
Islands SREE1ETHIR REER
HEELES R
Elise Company Limited British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding
Islands SREE1ETHIR REER
EBELES i3)
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36.

37.

38.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

AR,

Issued and paid-up/
registered capital
BRITRBE
&R

Name of the subsidiary

WEATERE

Winner Success Investment  HK HK$100
Limited BB 10078 7T
BRIREERLH
BAC HK Limited HK HK$10,000
5B 10,0007 T
Power Asia Motorspot HK HK$10,000
Company Limited 5B 10,0007 7T
HILESMEBRLE The PRC RMB600,000
H AK#600,0007T
HELELENARLT The PRC RMB600,000
H AE#600,0007T

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 15 August 2016, the Group entered into a memorandum
of understanding with the vendors (one of the vendors is the
spouse of a director of the Company’s subsidiary and hence
is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level
under the Listing Rules) in relation to the acquisition of 51%
of the issued share capital of a target company which is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and
is principally engaged in motorcycled related business in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. The target company is also the
exclusive importer and distributor in Hong Kong for several
top motorcycle and motorcycle accessories brand. Up to the
approval date of these financial statements, a refundable
deposit of HK$5,000,000 has been paid. In the opinions of the
directors, the transaction is still in progress.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 September 2016.

36

ownership interest

37

38.

NS PNCIEES )

Percentage of

Principal activities
FEERDL FEXH
Direct Indirect

E& A

70%  Investment holding

REZR

90% Distributor and trading
of motor vehicles and
related accessories

NEEREERE
R AERAE

90%  Distributor and trading
of motor vehicles and
related accessories

NHEEREERE
R AR E

100% Plantation related business

EEREER

100%  Research and development

iy

- BERRER

RZZE—RENA+HEB  AEFEHEZH
(B —FEAAARENBLARESZ
8 BARE EHRABERQATRHE L
AEEZBEEAL) UREBESE &
REBEWEEEZEAAEEITRAS51% -
ZATAREBEMRIZERAT » £
ERES  AERTENESSEERBEE
%o BEARNEBETHEAESEEREE
BHE4RECEBSBEORDL D HEE -
BEMEZSYHRBRREEY  TRERS
5,000,000 TE X - EERARZNE
ETH o

pebelpr s e

MBBRRN-B-—AR"FAA=T\HEE
SERBARERT -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBGEE

AEEH FREVRFENEEREERER
ZHREERTX > AR EE TR 2 &E
BEBHR  WRNBERRTEHN DR

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS oy

For the years ended 30 June

BEANA=+HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
=B-AF —F-RF —F-MOF —F-=F —F--F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
THERT TEx TET TAT TET
Turnover e 13,365 2,733 9,955 31,014 28,838
Loss before tax BREBRIEE (123,590) (84,601) (79,070) (47,804)  (334,688)
Income tax credit FriSHiE R 16,704 15,700 9,909 5,672 64,945
Loss for the year FERE (106,886) (68,901) (69,161) (42,132)  (269,743)
Other comprehensive income  EMZEIA (36,979) 1,246 (12,262) 14,918 17,160
Total comprehensive loss for  FEZHEEBHAE
the year (143,865) (67,655) (81,423) (27,214)  (252,583)
Total comprehensive loss for LA~ A T E(EEE
the year attributable to: 2HEEBAE
Owners of the Company EAREEA (143,588) (67,655) (81,423) (27,214)  (252,674)
Non-controlling interests FERER (277) - - — 91
(143,865) (67,655) (81,423) (27,214)  (252,583)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

As at 30 June
RAB=TH
2015 2014 2012

“E-RF —E-IOF —E2-——F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR THx TR TET FTET

Non-current assets FREEE 798,434 801,026 991,919 873,806 946,122

Current assets REBEE 200,491 184,770 78,946 54,523 33,973

Current liabilities REBAE (17,234) (16,017) (15,949) (19,866) (78,493)
Non-current liabilities EIST A=Y (164,324)  (193,745)  (211,227)  (197,755)  (212,894)
Net assets EEFE 817,367 776,034 843,689 710,708 688,708

Attributable to: BT AL :

Owners of the Company AABEEA 817,653 776,034 843,689 710,708 688,708

Non-controlling interests FERER (286) — — — —

Total equity EREE 817,367 776,034 843,689 710,708 688,708
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